Kent Taylor Civic Hall
230 NE Second Street
McMinnville, OR 97128

City Council Meeting Agenda
Tuesday, March 24, 2020
7:00 p.m. — Regular Council Meeting

Welcome! In abundance of caution we will not be taking Citizens Comment during this meeting as we are limiting
the duration of the City Council Meeting. The public is welcome to attend, however if you are not feeling well,
please stay home and take care of yourself. In accordance with Governor Kate Brown's Executive Order 2020-07
we are limiting the amount of people at Civic Hall and if we meet capacity we may ask you to leave.

You can watch the City Council Meeting here:
http://schedule.mcmi11.org/CablecastPublicSite/watch/2?channel=1

You may join online via Zoom Meeting:
https.//mcminnvilleoregon.zoom.us/j/342054084?pwd=NXp3bEthTUIwWZmN2dVM1QVMvQ3ZuQT09
Zoom ID: 342-054-084
Zoom Password: 910191

Or you can call in and listen via zoom: 1-253- 215- 8782
ID: 342-054-084

7:00 PM — REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING — COUNCIL CHAMBERS
1. CALLTO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ADVICE/ INFORMATION ITEMS
a. Reports from Councilors on Committee & Board Assignments
= Child Abuse Prevention Month
b. Department Head Reports

4. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Authorize City Manager to sign the Airport Property Lease Amendment with Van Holland
Farms.
b. Consider the Minutes of the September 24, 2019 City Council Work Session and Regular City
Council Meeting.

5. RESOLUTION
a. Consider Resolution No. 2020-18: A Resolution for City of McMinnville, Oregon Ratifying the
Declaration of State of Emergency signed by Mayor Scott Hill on March 16, 2020.
b. Consider Resolution No. 2020-19: A Resolution approving the award of a Personal Services
Contract to Jacobs for Phase 1 of the Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Biosolids Storage Tank
and Grit System Expansion, Project 2019-10.

Kent Taylor Civic Hall is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made a least 48 hours before the meeting to the City Recorder (503) 435-
5702 or Claudia.Cisneros@mcminnvilleoregon.gov.



mailto:Claudia.Cisneros@mcminnvilleoregon.gov
http://schedule.mcm11.org/CablecastPublicSite/watch/2?channel=1
https://mcminnvilleoregon.zoom.us/j/342054084?pwd=NXp3bEthTUlwZmN2dVM1QVMvQ3ZuQT09

6. ORDINANCE

a. Consider second reading of Ordinance No. 5084: An Ordinance Amending the Comprehensive
Plan Map Designation of the Property at the Northeast Quadrant of the Intersection of NW Hill
Road and NW Baker Creek Road from a Commercial Designation to a Mix of Residential and
Commercial Designations.

b. Consider second reading of Ordinance No. 5085: An Ordinance Approving a Zone Change of
the Property at the Northeast Quadrant of the Intersection of NW Hill Road and NW Baker
Creek Road from a Mix of R-1 (Single Family Residential) and EF-80 (Exclusive Farm Use) to C-3
(General Commercial) and R-4 (Multiple Family Residential).

c. Consider second reading of Ordinance No. 5086: An Ordinance Approving a Planned
Development Amendment to Amend the Conditions of Approval and Reduce the Size of an
Existing Planned Development Overlay District at the Northeast Quadrant of the Intersection of
NW Hill Road and NW Baker Creek Road.

d. Consider second reading of Ordinance No. 5087: An Ordinance Approving a Planned
Development Overlay District to Allow for the Development of a 280 Lot Residential Subdivision
with Modifications from the Underlying Zoning Requirements at the Northeast Quadrant of the
Intersection of NW Hill Road and NW Baker Creek Road.

e. Consider second reading of Ordinance No. 5088: An Ordinance Approving a Tentative
Subdivision for a 280 Lot, Phased Single-Family Detached Residential Development at the
Northeast Quadrant of the Intersection of NW Hill Road and NW Baker Creek Road.

f. Consider second reading of Ordinance No. 5089: An Ordinance Approving a Landscape Plan
and Street Tree Plan for the Baker Creek North Subdivision.

7. ADJOURNMENT

Kent Taylor Civic Hall is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made a least 48 hours before the meeting to the City Recorder (503) 435-
5702 or Claudia.Cisneros@mcminnvilleoregon.gov.



mailto:Claudia.Cisneros@mcminnvilleoregon.gov

PROCLAMATION

Whereas, child abuse is considered to be one of our nation’s most serious public health problems with
scientific studies documenting the link between the abuse and neglect of children and a wide range of medical,
emotional, psychological, and behavioral disorders if left untreated; and

Whereas, it is estimates that 1 in 4 children will suffer significant abuse before the age of 18 and
annually over 84,000 Oregonian children are reported to the Department of Human Services as having been
abused or neglected with over 12,500 child abuse victims confirmed in 2018 (latest data); and

Whereas, the physical, emotional, and financial impact of abuse and neglect falls most heavily on
children of all ages and abilities, who come from all economic, racial, cultural and social backgrounds; and
these crimes affect an exponential number of family members, friends, neighbors, and coworkers; and

Whereas, a trauma-informed response to victims promotes healing and fosters strength in survivors; and

Whereas child victims who feel understood and supported are more likely to disclose their
victimization, seek services to find healing, continue in their treatment, and participate in the justice process;
and

Whereas, providing victims and their families with knowledge of their rights and available services
further strengthens their ability to recover by restoring a sense of self-empowerment; and

Whereas, effective child abuse prevention programs succeed because of partnerships created among
Children’s Advocacy Centers, government agencies, schools, faith communities, civic organizations, law
enforcement, the business community, and other stakeholders; and

Whereas, McMinnville is dedicated to strengthening child abuse survivors and their non-offending
families in the aftermath of crime, building resilience in our communities, and working to prevent abuse and
neglect all together to create a safer, healthier, and more thriving community;

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Scott A. Hill, Mayor of the City of McMinnville, do hereby proclaim April
2020 as
National Child Abuse Prevention Month

In Witness Whereof, | have hereunto set my hand and caused the official Seal of the City of McMinnville
to be affixed this 24" day of March, 2020.

We reaffirm McMinnville’s commitment to help prevent child abuse through awareness efforts, prevention
promotion, and training. We call upon all citizens to invest in the lives of all our children, to be aware of their
safety and well-being, and celebrate those who provide prevention education, intervention, and treatment to
victims of child abuse and neglect, ensuring that all children are afforded their rights to be safe from harm, as
well as promote the healing and ongoing development of these our most precious resource - our children!

Scott A. Hill, Mayor



City of McMinnville

Community Development Department
231 NE Fifth Street

McMinnville, OR 97128

(503) 434-7312
www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov

STAFF REPORT

DATE: March 17, 2020
TO: Jeff Towery, City Manager
FROM: Mike Bisset, Community Development Director

SUBJECT:  Airport Property Lease Amendment — Van Holland Farms

Report in Brief: This lease amendment extends the term of the lease with Van Holland Farms for
farming of 34.7 acres of airport property to September 1, 2026, and adjusts the lease rate to $150.00
per acre per year.

Discussion: Van Holland Farms has been actively farming property at the airport since 1980.
In 2012, Van Holland Farms entered into a lease with the City for farming of 34.7 acres of airport
property (see attached lease document).

The term of the 2012 was for five years, with the ability to extend the lease to September 1, 2022 via
five one-year extensions. Currently, the lease has been extended to September 1, 2020 (see attached
lease extension).

The lease rate in the 2012 lease was $34.58 per acre per year ($1,200 per year total). As part of the
lease extension in 2019, the lease rate was adjusted to $75.00 per acre per year ($2,602 per year
total).

Van Holland Farms replanted the fescue crop on the leased property in 2019, and that replanting failed.
They are interested in investing in an additional replanting the crop this spring, but have asked that the
lease be extended to 2026 so that they can recoup the costs of the additional investment over the
length of the crop.

As part of the lease amendment, Van Holland Farms has agreed to increase the lease rate to $150.00
per acre per year ($5,205 per year total).

Given the Van Holland Farms’ long term historical commitment to farming airport property, and their
willingness to increase the lease rate, staff is in support of the lease amendment.

Attachments:
1. Proposed Lease Amendment
2. 2012 Farm Lease w/ map
3. Farm Lease Extension through September 1, 2020.

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council approve the lease amendment with Van
Holland Farms for the lease of 34.7 acres of airport property.

Page |1 4


http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/

LEASE AMENDMENT

This lease amendment is entered into on this day of , 2020, by and
between the City of McMinnville, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon (Lessor), and
Van Holland Farms (Lessee).

RECITALS:

The Lessor and Lessee are parties to a lease agreement entered into on the 18th day of
September, 2012, the “Premises” described as Parcel A (34.7 acres), all as more particularly
described in the lease agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A.

The original term of that agreement expired on September 1, 2017, and the parties have
agreed to three out of the five available one-year extensions of the lease, which have extended
the term of the lease to September 1, 2020.

The parties desire to amend the lease term to expire on September 1, 2026.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. The term of the above-reference lease agreement is hereby amended to continue
through August 31, 2026, expiring on September 1, 2026.

2. During the amended term from September 1, 2020 through August 31, 2026, the Lessee
agrees to pay as rent for the premises, the sum of $150.00 per acre per lease year.

3. All remaining terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain unchanged.

CITY OF MCMINNVILLE VAN HOLLAND FARMS

By: Jeff Towery, City Manager By: Gary Van Holland



LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY
BY AND BETWEEN
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON
AND
VANHOLLAND FARMS

This lease is made and entered into on cf -1€-12 by and between City of
McMinnville, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon (Lessor), and VanHolland
Farms. (Lessee).

1. Premises: In consideration of the covenants and agreements contained in this
lease, Lessor leases to Lessee the following property: Parcel A, consisting of
approximately thirty four and seven tenths (34.7) acres as indicated in Exhibit A,
aftached to this lease and incorporated by this reference. Parcel A (Premises) is located
in Yamhill County, Oregon.

2. Period of the Lease: The lease on the Premises shall commeance upon execution
of this document and, unless terminated at a different time pursuant fo Sections 10, 17,
20 or 21 of this lease, shall continue through August 31, 2017, expiring on September 1,
2017. Lessee covenants with Lessor that, upon termination of this lease either as
anticipated by this paragraph or by paragraph 8, Lessee will quit and deliver the
Premises and all future erections, improvements, or additions to or upon the Premises,
to Lessor, peaceably and in as good an order and condition as the Premises are now or
may in the future be put by Lessar. Loss by fire, flood, unavoidable casualty, and
reasonable use and wear of the Premises is excepted.

3. Consideration: Lessee agrees to pay Lessor, as rent for the premises, the sum of
$34.58 per acre for each lease year. The lease year immediately following execution of
this lease shall run from the date the lease is fully executed through August 31, 2012
anc payment for this Iease year will be prorated. The remaining lease years shall
commence September 1% each year, and shall end on the 31st day of the following
August. Payment for the first lease year shall be in cash, due within thirty (30} days of
the date the lease is fully executed. Payment for subsequent lease years shall be in
cash, due on or before December 31st of the previous year. Payments shall be made
ta City of MeMinnville and be mailed or delivered to City of McMinnville, Attn: Finance
Department, 230 NE 2nd Street, McMinnville, OR 97128. Lessee will include with the
payment a statement that the payment relates to the "Airport Farm Lease.”

. OEFRICIAL YAKHILL COUNTY RECORDS
After recording . 201 2-14298
TY CLER
Retumn to: City of McMinnville REBEKAH STERN DOLL. COUNTY K
231 NE 5% &t
Mehdinomille OR 9718 | "I“ | II l |I| "I” l |||||||||||| |!| 591.00

Tax Staternents: N/A 04011842012 10/04/2012 04,24:51 PM

DMR-LDMR  Cni=1 $in=3 SUSIE
$60.09 $5.00 $11.00 §15.00




Any lease payment required of Lessee that is not paid within ten days of the due date
shall bear interest at the rate of the maximum rate of interest permitted by law {at the
time of the signing of this agreement, 9% per annum) from the due date until paid.

4. Expenses Caused by Lease Termination: Lessor agrees not to terminate the
lease during the normal ¢rop growing season unless required to do so in order to meet
Airport facility expansion needs, or other future Lessor needs. Lessor shall not be liable
for any expense incurred by Lessee in producing crops, except upon termination of
lease by Lessor for Lessor's beneficial use of the premises under the terms of this
section, Should Lessor terminate the fease pursuant to the terms of this section,
Lessee shall be entitled to out of pocket expenses and labor and equipment costs but
shall not be entitled to any future profits from crops. In no event shall the Lessee be
entitied to any expenses or potential profits beyond the current lease year relative to
crops with muilti-year production,

5. Taxes: Lessor agrees to pay, on or before November 15 each tax year, all taxes
due on the Premises. Lesses shall pay, as due, all taxes on its personal property
located on the Premises.

8. Encumbrances: Should there ever be a mortgage or other encumbrance on the
Premises, Lessor agrees to keep the encumbrance in good standing at all times, fo
make all payments when due, and not to suffer or permit payments to be or become in
default.

7. Relationship of the Partiss: The Lessor and Lessee agree that under no
circumstances shall this lease be construed as giving rise to a partnership between
them, and neither Lessor nor Lessee shall be liable for the debts or obligations of the
other.

8. Lease Term Extensions: The lease may, upon mutual agreement of the Lessor
and the Lessee, be extended for five (5) renewal terms of one year each. Lessee shall
provide written notification to the Lessor, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
of the lease, that Lessee wishes to extend the lease. The parties will, at that time,
renegotiate the lease price and the comprehensive general liability insurance coverage
amount. If a mutually acceptable price and coverage amount can not be agreed upon,
the extension of the lease will fail.

9. Notices Directed to: Notices required or permitted under this lease shall be
directed to:

Lessor; Lessee:
City of McMinnviile Gary Van Holland
Aftn: Community Dev. Dir Van Holland Farms
231 NE 5" Street 11525 SE Cruickshank Rd.

McMinnville, OR 97128 Dayton, OR 97114




(603) 434-7312 (b03) 864-2327
(503) 474-4955 {Fax)

10. Use of the Premises: The Premises will not be used in any way prohibited by law
or governmental regulation. Should they be so used, the lease will automatically
terminate immediately.

In connection with the use of the Premises, Lessee will conform to all applicable laws
and regulations of any public authority affecting the premises and the use, and correct,
at Lessee's own expense, any failure of compliance created through Lessee's fault or
by reason of Lessee’s use. Lessee shall refrain from any activity that would make it
impossible to insure the Premises against casualty, would increase the insurance rate,
or would prevent Lessor from taking advantage of any available reduction in insurance
rates unless Lessee pays the additional cost. Lessee shall refrain from any use that
would be reasonably offensive to owners or tenants or users of neighboring premises or
that would tend to create a nuisance.

Lessee shall not cause or permit any hazardous substances or contaminants to be
spilled, leaked, disposed of, or otherwise released on the Premises without strict
envircnmental controls satistactory to Lessor. Lessee shall comply with all
environmental laws {including federal, state, and local laws, and any judicial or other
governmental orders pertaining to the protection of health, safety, or the environment)
and exercise the highest degree of care in handling hazardous substances or
contaminants and shall take all practicable measures to minimize the quantity and
toxicity of hazardous substances on the Premises, Upon the expiration or termination of
this agreement, Lessee shall remove all hazardous substances or contaminants from
the Premises.

11. Special Conditions of Use: The Lessee further agrees to:

{a) Farm and cultivate the Premises in a judicious manner; keep the fences,

hedges, buildings and improvements thereon in as good condition and repair as the
same are now ot as they may be put in subsequently by either party hereto, ordinary
wear and tear and damage by fire, flood, unavoidable casualty, and the elements alone
excepted,;

{b)} Not allow noxious weeds to go to seed on the premises, but to destroy them, and
keep out the weeds and grass on roads within and adjoining the Premises;

{c) Haul out and spread on fields to be agreed on at least onca per year all manure and
compost produced on the Premises;

(d) Mot burn any straw or crop residues except as permmitted by law, and then only with
Lessor's parmission,




(e) Follow standard treatment for diseases of all seed sown on the Premises and pay
the cost thereof,

(f} Take proper care of all frees, vines and shrubs and prevent injury to them and,
except when needed for fences, not cut down any live trees except with Lessor's
permission;

{g) Keep all ditches clean, open and free from brush and growth;
(h) Allow no stock on the premises except the stock of Lessee;
(i} Not plow pastures or meadow-land without Lessor's consent;
(k) Not allow damage or waste to Lessor's property;

(m) Pay all expenses of delivering crops to market;

(o) Not assign this lease, nor sublet or permit any person{s) other than members of
Lessee's family and employees to occupy the Premises without consent of Lessor being
first obtained in writing; and

(p) Plantonly annual crops, or perennial crops that would allow the application of
biasolids and abstain from planting any crop that couid prohibit the application of
biosolids.

12, Access: Lessee is required to coordinate access with the owner(s) and lessee(s)
of the adjacent properties (if any) and minimize the disruption or damage caused. Any
cost associated with damage or alteration to adjacent properties related to this lease will
be paid by the Lessee.

(a) Airport Security - Lessee recognizes its obligations to comply with federal airport
security regulations applicable to the Airport. The City shall notify Lessee of any such
federal airport security regulations which City becomes aware of and which are or may
become applicable to Lessee's use or occupancy of the Premises. As of the date of
execution of this lease, there are no applicable security regulations that apply to the use
or occupancy of the Premises.

(b) Lessee shall ensure that the airfield environment is kept continuously free of debris,
equipment, and/or other materials that might endanger aircraft.

(c} Far emergency purposes, all vehicles shall be equipped with radio, telephone, or
similar devices for contact by City or Airport Operations personnel. En the event of an
emetgency, Lessee acknowledges the need to be prepared to move workers, vehicles,
and equipment immediately at the direction of the City or Airport Operations.




{d)} No smoking will be allowed within the airfield environment except as designated by
the City.

13. Vehicles on Airport Property

The purpose of this section is to provide for the safety of vehicle operations in the
airfield environment, should such vehicle operation occur. Enforcement of these
requirements will be by the City, Police, or Airport Operations Staff. Violations of the
requirements may be cause for Lessee’s work to be stopped and Lessee's safety
procedures to be evaluated. The City, in its sole discretion, wilt have the authority to
determine when Lessee's work may safely be continued.

The driving requirements are as follows:

(a) Yield the right-of-way to a) moving aircraft, whether under tow or their own power,
and b) pedestrans.

(b) Within the airfield environment, equipment, vehicle, and personnel travel ouiside the
work area is resftricted to established route(s).

(¢} Obey stop signs and markings.

(d) Yield right-of-way to emergency vehicles displaying rotating beacons {(other than
amber) andfor using sirens and other audible emergency signals.

(e} Observe the posted speed limits.

(f} Regardless of a posted speed limit, a lower speed may be required in order to
account for congestion, reduced visibility, slippery surfaces, or other hazardous
conditions. No vehicle shall be driven in a manner that endangers persons or property.
(g) The speed limit of all service roads is 25 MPH or as posted.

(h) Mator vehicles shall be equipped with omni-directional amber flashing lights, head
lights, tail lights, and flashers that shall be used between sunset and sunrise or when
visibility is low.

{i) Non-motorized equipment shall have reflective devices displayed on the front, back, !
and sides.

{i) Vehicle operators shall have a current and valid state driver’s license on their person.

{k) Unattended vehicles shall not be left with engines running.

(I) Vehicles operating in aircraft movement areas may require the following:




1. Escort provided by Airport Operations Personnel ot other designated personnel.
2. Radio equipped with Ground Control Frequency

{m) Unattended vehicles will be parked clear of service and perimeter roads.

(n) Loads being carried shall be contained by sufficient means to assure no loss of any
portion of the load.

{0) Equipment that extends 15 feet or more abave ground level shall be cleared through
the City prior to moving onto site. Equipment that may be lowered readily shall be
fowered at night, during reduced daytime visibility, and during other periods of storage to
comply with the 15-foot height Emitation.

(p) If directed by the City, equipment that cannot be lowered below the 15-foot height
limitation shall be lighted at night and during periods of reduced daytime visibility. The
lighting shall be mounted on the highest point of the equipment, shall be omni-
directional, and shall consist of, as a minimum, one 100-watt bulb enclosed within an
aviation red lens. Also, for daytime operations, an FAA-approved three-foot square
orange and white checkered flag shall be mounted at the high point,

14. Maintenance: Lessee shall have full responsibility for maintenance of the
Premises. Lessee shall keep the Premises clean and in good appearance. Lessee
shall make no physical alterations without permission of the Lessor.

15. Insurance Requirements: Lessor shall keep the Premises insured at Lessor's
expense against fire and any other risks covered by a standard fire insurance policy.
Lessee shall insure any property of Lessee on the Premises against the same risks,
Neither party shall be liable to the other (or to the other's successors or assigns) for any
loss or damage caused by fire or any of the risks enumerated in a standard fire
insurance policy, and in the event of insured loss, neither party’s insurance company
shall have a subrogated claim against the other. This waiver shall be valid only if the
insurance policy in guestion expressly permits waiver of subrogation ot if the insurance
company agrees in writing that such a waiver will not affect coverage under the policies.
Each party agrees to use best efforts to obtain such an agreement from its insurer if the
policy does not expressly permit a waiver of subrogation.

Lessee shall, before the commencement of this agreement, procure and, during the
term of this agreement, maintain the following insurance at Lessee’s cost:
Comprehensive general liability insurance in a responsible company with limits of not
less than $1,000,000 for injury fo persons or property. This insurance shall cover all
risks arising directly or indirectly out of Lessee’s activities on or any condition of the
Premises. Such insurance shall protect Lessee against the claims of Lessor on account
of the indemnification obligations assumed by Lessee above. The insurance shall name
the Lessor as an additional insured, Cerfificates evidencing this insurance and bearing




endorsements requiring thirty days’ written notice to Lessor prior to any change or
cancellation shall be furnished to Lessor prior to Lessee’s occupancy of the Premises,

16. Indemnification: Lessee shall indemnify and defend Lessor from any claim, loss,
or liability arising out of or related to any activity of Lessee on the Premises or any
condition of the Premises in the possession or under the control of Lessee. Lessor shall
have no liability to Lessee for any injury, loss, or damage caused by third parties, or by
any candition of the Premises except to the extent caused by Lessor's negligence or
breach of duty under this agreement.

17. Damage to or Destruction of the Premises: If the Premises are partially
damaged, they shall be repaired as soon as practicable at Lessor's expensa. If the
Premises are destroyed or damaged to the extent that the cost of repair exceeds 25%
of the value of the Premises before the destruction or damage, either party may elect to
terminate this lease as of the date of the destruction or damage by written notice to the
other party not more than thirty (30) days following the date of the destruction or
damage. [n such circumstances, the rights and chligations of the parties will cease as
of the date of the termination and Lessee shall be entitled fo reimbursement of any
prepaid lease amount, prorated. If neither party elects to terminate, Lessor shall, as
soon as practicable, restore the Premises to substantially the same condition as before
the destruction or damage. Lessee shall be reimbursed a prerated amount of lease
payments for any period during which the Premises are not usable.

18. Warranties: Lessor warrants that it is the owner of the Premises and has the right
to lease them free of all encumbrances. Lessor will defend Lessee’s right to quite
enjoyment of the Premises from the lawful ctaims of all persons during the lease term.

19. Assignment, Mortgage, Subleases: No part of the Premises may be assigned,
mortgaged, or subleased, nor may a right of use of any portion of the Premises be
conferred on any third person by any other means, without prior written consent of
Lessor. This provision shall apply to all transfers by operation of law, including a
transfer of a majority voting interest in stock or partnership interest of Lessee. No
consent in one instance shall prevent this provision from applying to a subsequent
instance. Lessor may withhold or condition consent in its sole and arbitrary discretion.
Lessor shall consent to a transaction covered by this provision when withholding
consent would be unreasonable in the circumstances. Lessor shall not unreasonably
delay consent,

20. Early Termination of Lease by Agreement: [f the Lessee desires to terminate
this lease agreement at times other than those anticipated by Section 2 or Section 8, a
request must be submitted in writing to the Lessor at least thirty (30) days in advance of
the intended termination date. [f the request for early termination of the lease
agreement is granted, the Lessee will quit and deliver the Premises to the Lessor by the
agreed upon termination date, peaceably and in as good an order and condition as the




Premises are now or may in the future be put by Lessor. Rent payments shall not be
pro-rated when the lease is terminated under this section.

21. Default and Remedies: The following events shall constitute default;

Failure of Lessee to pay any lease payments within thirty (30) days after payment is
dus.

Failure of Lessee to comply with any term or condition or fulfill any obligation of this
agreement (other than the payment of lease payments) within twenty (20) days after
written notice from the Lessor specifying the nature of the default with reasonable
particularity. If the default is of a nature that cannot be completely corrected within
twenty (20) days, this provision shall be complied with if Lessee commences carrection
within twenty (20) days (ot as soon as practicable) and proceeds with reasonable
diligence and in good faith.

Insolvency of the Lessee, an assignment by Lessee for the benefit of creditors, filing by
Lessee of a voluntary petition of bankruptey, an adjudication that Lessee is bankrupt or
the appointment of a receiver for the properties of Lessee, filing of any involuntary
petition of bankruptcy and failure of Lessee to secure a dismissal of the petition within
thirty {30) days after filing, attachment of or the levying of execution on the leasehold
interest and failure of Lessee to secure discharge of the attachment or release of the
levy of execution with ten (10) days.

Failure of the Lessee to occupy the Premises for the purposes permitted under this
agreement for the period of one (1) year.

In the event of a default, this agreement may be terminated at the option of the Lessor
by written notice to Lessee, Whether or not the lease is terminated by the election of
Lessor, Lessor shall be entitled to recover damages from Lessee for the default and
Lessor may re-enter, take possession of the Premises, and remove any persons of
property by legal action or by self-help with the use of reasonable force and without
liability for damages and without having accepted a surrender. Following re-entry or
abandonment, Lessor may re-let the Premises, or any part thereof, but Lessor shall not
be required to reet.

In the event of termination or re-taking of possession following defauli, Lessor shall be
entitled to recover immediately, without waiting until the due date of any future lease
payment or until the date fixed for expiration of the lease, the following amounts as
damages:

The loss of [ease payments from the date of default until a new tenant is, or with the
exercise of reasonable efforts could have heen, secured and paying.




The reasonable costs of re-entry and re-letting, including without limitation the cost of
any cleanup, removal of Lessee’s property and fixtures, and any other costs or
expenses incurred through Lessee’s default.

Any excess of the value of the rent and all of Lessee’s other obligations under this
agreement over the reasonable expected return from the Premises for the period
commencing onh the earlier of the date of trial or the date the premises are re-let, and
continuing through the end of the term.

Lessor may sue perfodically to recover the damages during the period corresponding to
the remainder of the lease termn, and no action for damages shall bar a later action for
damages subsequently accruing.

The above remedies are in addition to and shall not exclude any other remedy available
to Lessor under applicable law.

The limitations on remedies shall not preclude either party from seeking or obtaining
injunctive relief ar from seeking recovery against the other under any contractual
indemnity set out in this agreement or for causing physical damage or injury to persons

or property.

22. Strict Performance: Waiver by either party of strict performance of any provision
of this agreement shall not be a waiver of or prejudice the party's right to require strict
performance of the same provision or of any other provision in the future.

23. Attorney Fees: If suit or action is instituted in connection with any confroversy
arising out of this agreement, the prevailing party shall be entifled to recover, in addition
to costs, such sums as the court may adjudge reasonable as attomey fees at frial, on
petition for review, and on appeal.

24. Successors and Assigns: Subject to the above-stated limitations on transfer of
Lessee’s interest, this agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the
parties and their respective successors and assigns.

25. Recording: This agreement shall be recorded at the expense of Lessor.

26. Lessor's Rights: Lessor shali have the right to enter upon the Premises at any
time to detemine Lessee's compliance with the terms of this agreement, and, in
addition, shall have the right, at any time during the [ast year of the term of the lease, to
place and maintain upon the Premises notices for leasing or selling the Premises,

27. Time of the Essence: Time is of the essence of the performance of each of
Lessee’s obligations under this agreement.




28. Arbitration: If any dispute arises between the parties, either party may request
arbitration and appoint as an arbitrator an independent real estate appraiser having
knowledge of leased properties comparable to the premises. The other party shall also
choose an arbitrator with such qualifications, and the two arbitrators shall choose a
third. If the choice of the second or third arbitrator is not made within ten (10) days of
the choosing of the prior arbitrator, then either party may apply to the presiding judge for
the judicial district where the premises are located to appoint the required arbitrator,
The arbitrators shall proceed according to the Oregon statutes governing arbitration,
and the award of the arbitrators shall have the effect therein provided. The arbitration
shall take place in Yamhill County. Costs of the arbitration shall be shared equally by
the parties, but each party shall pay its own attorney fees incurred in connection with
the arbitration.

MQM y a ﬁ[‘&ﬁ‘ﬂfﬁf J( ,f'drz#'/

Gary VanHolland Kent L. Taylor
VanHolland Farms City Manager
Q-1 /2. G 24 S 2—
Date Date a4
) 5
# O = !'L'
(/éf ge3e
Approved as to Form &=2R0
=0 X gé
Su &
Bz5S0
STATE OF OREGON, } §§§ E
. 55 (=1
County of ..._._M‘thl = il

On d_ﬁ QJ&HL"\}H/ (0 5'-*‘ 17: :' before me personally appeared - L(l\"'{‘—}\lﬁ_ﬂhbmnd

whose :dcnnty was established to my Edusfa.ctmn :md who execulcd the fnregnmg instrumernt, ncknuwledp,mg o me thal the same was
executed freely-and voluntarily. {

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my hand and

ixed my official @ul on the date first written above.

o ie, OFFICIAL SEAL 1: )
B8 LINDSEY M PURTYMUN | - o e el
. NOTARY PUBLIC-OREGON r Urcgnn ‘ B zt)'l’z,
COMMISSION NO, 438230 My commission expires i . 2 s
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES APRIL 8, 2013

MO PART OF ANY STEVENE-NESS FORM MAY BE REPRDODUCED ™ ANY FORM OR BY ANY ELECTRONIC OR MECHANICAL MEANS.

FOAM No. 23 - ACKNOWLEDGMENT, INDIVIDUAL.  EA T 1562 200 STEVENS-NESS LAW PUELSHING TO., PORTLAND. Of) geen. sizveréiess com



EXHIBIT A"

A tract of land in Section 24 and 25, Township 4 South, Range 4 West of the Willamette Meridian in
vamhill County, Oregon, said tract,being a portion of land deeded to the City of McMinnvilie and
recorded in Yamhill County deed records on lanuary 22" 1974 Book 98, Page 598 and shown on Yamhlll
County Survey, CSP 7717 recorded December 29", 1980, and more particufarly described as follows:

Beginning at a paint, said point heing the “place of beginning” described in the above mentioned
recorded deed and befng the “True Point of Beginning” of this description. Thence North 00d29°30"
West, 322.13 feet; thence North 65d46'11" East, 758.96 feet along the Southeast boundary of the above
mentioned tract of land. Thence North 01d23°6” East, 480.25 feet; thence North 11d00°57" West,
93.45'; thence North 22d10'27" West, 126.13 feet; thence North 00d02'34” East, 95.89 feet; thence
North 27d55°44" West, 47.40 feet; thence North §7d53'17" Waest, 53.59 feet; thence South 81d38'5"
West, 128.50 feet; thence North 15d18'02" West, 79.49 feet; thence North 44d18'54" West, 50.33 feet;
thence North 74d47°037 West, 158.44 feat: thence South 67438'21" West, 1030.22 feet along the South
houndary of Salmon River Highway No. 18 sald boundary also being the North boundary of the above
mentioned tract of land. Thence leaving said boundary and traveling South 24d45°38" West, 34.57 feet;
thenee South 07d30°56” East, 62.14 fzet; thence South 37d33"14" Waest, 122 .27 feet to the East
baundary of Cruickshank Rd (formerly Market Rd No. 32), said boundary as shown on the above
mentioned Yamhill County recorded survey CSP 7717, said boundary also being the west boundary of
the above mentioned tract of land; thence along said boundary to the “True Point of Beginning” of this
description.

Excepting that portion of the above mentioned tract of land covered by the City of McMinnville Airport
runway lights.




rt Agricultural Lease
arcel "A" 34.7 Acres




LEASE EXTENSION

This lease extension is entered into on this f) b.ﬂgav of A W 2019, by and between
the City of McMinnville, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregoh (Lessor), and Van
Holland Farms (Lessee).

RECITALS:

The Lessor and Lessee are parties to a lease agreement entered into on the 18th day of
September, 2012, the "Premises” described as Parcel A (34.7 acres), all as mare particularly
described in the lease agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A.

The original term of that agreement expired on September 1, 2017, and the parties have
agreed to two out of the five available one-year extensions of the lease, which have extended

the term of the |ease to September 1, 2019.

The parties desire to extend the lease a third time for a period of one additional year, to
expire on September 1, 2020,

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. The term of the above-reference lease agreement is hereby extended for a third time to
continue through August 31, 2020, expiring on September 1, 2020.

2. During the third extended term from September 1, 2019 through August 31, 2020, the
Lessee agrees to pay as rent for the premises, the sum of $75.00 per acre per lease year.

3. All remaining terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain unchanged.

CITY OF MCMINNVILLE VAN HOLLAND FARMS
4 Sl Jomlfalnt
By: feff Tdwery, City Mcﬁ.{ger By: Gary Vah Holland

Approved as to Form:

Tl b RECEIED

City Attorney '

JUL 28 _. 3

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
CENTER

18



CITY OF McMINNVILLE
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION

Held at the Kent L. Taylor Civic Hall on Gormley Plaza

Presiding:

Recording Secretary:

McMinnville, Oregon
Tuesday, September 24, 2019 at 6:00 p.m.
Scott Hill, Mayor

Melissa Bisset

Councilors: Present Excused Absence
Adam Garvin Remy Drabkin
Zack Geary
Kellie Menke, Council President
Sal Peralta
Wendy Stassens
Also present were City Attorney David Koch, City Manager Jeff Towery,
Fire Chief Rich Leipfert, Operations Chief Amy Hanifan, Fire Marshall
Debbie McDermott, Interim Finance Director Elizabeth Comfort, Police
Chief Matt Scales, and Jerry Eichten, McMinnville Community Media.
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hill called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m.
and welcomed all in attendance.
2. DISCUSSION - Possible Changes to Regulations on Licensed Care

Facilities

Fire Chief Leipfert provided a history of the Fire Department’s
interactions with the care facility industry and how non-emergency calls
and code enforcement challenges had continued to rise. When the
Ordinance was initiated:

e 15 Care Facilities in the McMinnville City limits

e 1093 available beds creating an average of 151 calls per month.
e 3% of the City’s population lives in care facilities

e 35%-38% of EMS calls in the City are to care facilities

e Large number of non-emergency use of the EMS system

e  Staff routinely refer to corporate policy requiring transport

e 11/1/18 - 9/1/19 1060 care home calls (post-ordinance)

e 11/1/17 -9/1/18 1473 care home calls (pre-ordinance)

Fire Chief Leipfert explained that fire prevention was important because it
helped protect the most vulnerable citizens with limited mobility, there

Page 1 of 11



were limited operations responders, and engineering, enforcement, and
education were paramount.

Nine months before the ordinance was passed former EMS Chief Dale
Mount and Fire Chief Leipfert met with care facilities to explain the
ordinance. Four months before the ordinance there was a joint meeting
with hospital, care facilities, and City Manager to explain the ordinance.
Two months before the ordinance there was a letter sent to all care homes
advising them of the ordinance on the City Council agenda. It was noted
that there was some turnover with care facility directors during that time.

Discussion ensued regarding communication with the Oregon Health Care
Association (OHCA).

City Attorney Koch noted that the first communication with OHCA was in
December of 2018 which was after the ordinance had been passed.

Councilor Peralta asked what conversations took place with OHCA.

City Attorney Koch stated that there was a letter from OHCA in December
2018 and there was correspondence between Mayor Hill and Fee
Stubblefield. Many of the concerns were addressed by the revised
ordinance that was on the Council’s agenda tonight. There was also a
telephone call that occurred between him and members of the OHCA
regarding the petition and also other emails between the City and OHCA
in trying to set up meetings.

Councilor Peralta said although it seemed like there had been outreach
efforts, they had not had a lot of engagement.

City Attorney Koch stated that there had been a lot of outreach with local
businesses affected by the ordinance. There wasn’t outreach to the state-
wide lobbying association for the care facilities and none of the businesses
referred the City to them. OHCA contacted the City after the ordinance
was passed.

Councilor Stassens asked if there was a way to more effectively
communicate in the future. She asked if there were any takeaways, such as
better communication with out of state property owners.

It was noted that letters were sent to the directors of the facilities.

Fire Chief Leipfert stated that there had been a lot of feedback since the
ordinance was passed. He reviewed the draft revised ordinance. The
following items of Ordinance 5059 would be staying:

e Specialty business license required to operate a care facility
e Annual inspection of all facilities

Page 2 of 11

20



e Fees charged when care facility uses City’s EMS system for non-
emergency purposes
e All fees set by Council resolution

The items that were new were;

e New definitions related to care standards, resident safety, and facility
oversight

e Facilities required to cooperate with City inspections and
investigations

e Prompt notice to City required after change of facility ownership or
operator

e Facility staffing, orientation, and training requirements

e Disaster, fire, and life safety planning and drills

e Prompt notice to City after disaster, fire, or incident endangering
resident safety

e Requirement to provide certain support services to residents

e Requirement to provide certain health monitoring and services to
residents

e Designation of resident rights

e Collection charges, interest, and penalties for delinquent payments

e Classification of infractions and designation of enforcement process

These updates were being done now due to updated research on gaps in
care facility regulatory oversight. He had gotten feedback from the Oregon
Health Care Association, local care facility residents, and local
firefighters.

He reviewed the regulatory gaps and provided examples of code violations
from 2017-2018. He reviewed the OHCA request for guidance and
clarification and how all of those items had been answered and the
ordinance had been changed to reflect the responsiveness to the letter.
They also had a meeting with local care facilities management, staff, and
residents and also community members to review the inspection reports
and get feedback on the current ordinance. Language had been cleaned up
and it was clarified that the ordinance did not apply to facilities operating
outside the City, adult foster care homes, and individual living
communities.

Councilor Garvin asked how facilities would know 45 days in advance
about terminating an operator. Fire Chief Leipfert said there would be a
purchase or transfer process for new owners or operators. City Attorney
Koch noted that there was a state licensing requirement related to transfer
of ownership and operation and this was consistent with the reporting

Page 3 of 11

21



requirement to the state. The City wanted to know this information as
well.

Council President Menke asked if the facilities were required to have a
disaster preparedness plan in writing. Fire Chief Leipfert said they were
required by the state to have a plan.

City Attorney Koch clarified that it would be important for the local
agency that would be responding to an emergency to have access to the
facilities’ written disaster plans.

Fire Marshall McDermott stated one of the biggest challenges was the
high staff turnover of these facilities and having to reeducate staff on the
types of systems they had, how to operate them, and what the
requirements were for maintaining them. It was paramount to making sure
residents were safe and that they had those systems working when needed.
If they were not maintained, it put residents at a high risk of danger. That
was why she thought the annual inspection was so important.

Councilor Peralta asked what the estimated costs were for providing the
annual inspections. Fire Chief Leipfert said they had not done a cost
analysis on the inspections.

Councilor Peralta asked if other cities required cost recovery for
inspections. Fire Marshall McDermott said not specific to this type of
ordinance, but several cities had enacted inspection fees.

Councilor Peralta asked how much what was in the proposed ordinance
would be touched by the charter amendment petition.

City Attorney Koch stated that would be a legal opinion and he could
prepare a legal briefing for the Council. The revisions to the ordinance had
been in development for more than six months. They were presented to the
Council in a Work Session in March and staff had spoken to various
groups about the revisions and some changes were made based on the
feedback. It was always the intention to bring the revised ordinance back
once they finished the code compliance work. He had reached out to
OHCA about meeting in October to discuss the revisions, but OHCA had
not responded.

Fire Chief Leipfert further reviewed the draft ordinance. He discussed the
updated language regarding fees and noted that some of the feedback was
that the $1,500 fee for non-emergency calls was a significant amount of
money for a first time offense. No one had paid this fee yet. He
recommended a tiered penalty charge instead.

Page 4 of 11

22



Operations Chief Hanifan explained the process for identifying a non-
emergency call. She noted that there had been opportunities for education
but nothing that had been determined as needing to charge the fee.

Fire Chief Leipfert said they were also recommending a reduced fee
schedule for successful, non-life threatening violations. It would start with
a $200 per bed fee, but would go down if in subsequent years they were
properly managing their fire code issues.

Mayor Hill stated that there had been a community meeting and they
would continue to meet. There was a first reading of the ordinance on
tonight’s agenda, and he asked if Council wanted to move forward with
that or take more time and make any changes.

Councilor Garvin wanted to wait until after the election.

Councilor Peralta thought the City should engage with the OHCA
attorneys for feedback and wait until after the election.

Council President Menke and Councilor Geary thought that it would be
good to wait till after the election.

Councilor Geary did not think that the City should move from its original
position. This was a private industry using public services to underwrite
their efforts to have as little overhead as possible and provide adequate
level of service to their customers.

Councilor Stassens expressed her thanks for the process and dialogue. She
supported what they were trying to do and the revisions suggested. It
would be good to continue the dialogue and let the political piece play out.
They should not compromise on addressing the problems either. She was
also in support of waiting to take action, but also making sure they were
covering their bases for their citizens.

Mayor Hill was in full support of the $1,500 non-emergency use fee. He
added that he would like to see the true cost of the inspections and code
enforcement.

ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Hill adjourned the meeting at 7:05 pm.

s/s Claudia Cisneros
Claudia Cisneros, City Recorder

Page 5 of 11

23



Presiding:

CITY OF McMINNVILLE
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION
Held at the Kent L. Taylor Civic Hall on Gormley Plaza
McMinnville, Oregon

Tuesday, September 24, 2019 at 7:00 p.m.

Scott Hill, Mayor

Recording Secretary: Melissa Bisset

Councilors:

Present Excused Absence
Adam Garvin Remy Drabkin

Zack Geary

Kellie Menke, Council President
Sal Peralta

Wendy Stassens

Also present were City Attorney David Koch, City Manager Jeff Towery,
Fire Chief Rich Leipfert, Operations Chief Amy Hanifan, Fire Marshall
Debbie McDermott, Interim Finance Director Elizabeth Comfort, Police
Chief Matt Scales, and Jerry Eichten, McMinnville Community Media.

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hill called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m.
and welcomed all in attendance.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Councilor Stassens led the Pledge of Allegiance.
INVITATION TO CITIZENS FOR PUBIC COMMENT

Del Zook, McMinnville resident, wanted to make sure the Fire
Department had ambulances where they were needed. He thought the
ordinance was the wrong way to go about addressing problems in the
senior care centers. He thought they needed to address the problems, but
not charging it on the backs of the seniors. Most of the regulations in the
ordinance the care centers already had to do. He asked why they would
add more regulations to what they were already doing. He discouraged any
kind of fee that put it on the backs of seniors.

Page 6 of 11

24



Mark Davis, McMinnville resident, had attended the last Council Work
Session with Visit McMinnville. He found it both inspiring and troubling.
He discussed the Economic Opportunities Analysis data, particularly the
employment and average pay for the different employment sectors.
Accommodation and food services had the lowest average pay per
employee and the second lowest was arts, entertainment, and recreation.
These were the industries that Visit McMinnville was impacting and
despite the good stories, the reality of the situation was that there were a
lot of people struggling to make ends meet. His concern was the housing
piece. They had lost some of the affordable housing because of the Visit
McMinnville impact. Tourism was growing in the community before Visit
McMinnville but with Visit McMinnville it was like tourism on steroids.
He was uncomfortable with the direction they were headed and they
needed to figure out how to supply housing for those making less than
$20,000 per year. The City needed to be part of the solution.

Cherry Haas, McMinnville resident, urged support for Ordinance 5059.
She thought it would provide safety for senior citizens in care facilities.
The majority of the care facilities in McMinnville were owned by out of
state corporations who were for profit. They had a different direction and
goal in allocating resources for staff and care for the residents. One of the
operators wrote in the News Register that the cost incurred to provide the
non-emergency assistance would be passed on. She stated that it did not
need to be passed on as it was part of the profit equation. She thought they
were currently providing a subsidy for business operating expenses of the
care home facilities.

Phil Bently with the Oregon Health Care Association stated that they had
not been directly involved in the draft ordinance presented this evening.
He stated that they had made many attempts at communication with the
City regarding this issue and opportunities for meaningful conversations
that could have potentially led to a different outcome than a ballot
measure. They had not been aware of the ordinance before it was passed.
Once they were aware of it, they made multiple attempts to engage.

Dr. Jim Dauvis, representing the Oregon State Council for Retired Citizens
and United Seniors of Oregon and State Affiliates of the National Council
on Aging, was extremely opposed to the ordinance that was recently
passed that would tax seniors. He thought the process had many
questionable aspects to it. This was a terrible precedent and would inflict a
significant burden on local seniors. He thought the revenue was to cover
the budget shortfall, not directly benefitting senior residents or creating
needed oversight. They were the only City in the US to attempt to adopt
its own set of long term care regulations and standards. The policy was

Page 7 of 11

25



flawed start to finish. The City of McMinnville did not have the expertise,
knowledge, and resources to effectively regulate or enforce care standards.
The ordinance conflicted with extensive state and federal regulations.

PROCLAMATION
MADE Day and National Manufacturing Day

Mayor Hill read the proclamation declaring October 4, 2019 as MADE
Day in conjunction with National Manufacturing Day and presented it to
Scott Cooper.

PRESENTATION

McMinnville Economic Development Partnership (MEDP) Annual
Update

Scott Cooper provided the annual update for the McMinnville Economic
Development Partnership (MEDP). He reviewed the recent business
retention and expansion projects in McMinnville. He also highlighted
industrial land projects and workforce programs. He discussed the work of
MEDP over the last year including the Launch Mid-Valley and Oregon
WORKS grant. In the coming years, they would be focusing on MEDP’s
Strategic Goals. These were: business retention and expansion, business
attraction, workforce development, and innovation development.

Councilor Stassens asked about the Tech Terroir project. Mr. Cooper
stated that was a new project and they would be continuing to work on
advancing the concept.

Mayor Hill thanked MEDP for their work and the report.

Councilor Garvin asked what the City could do from a policy standpoint to
help. Mr. Cooper stated that the Urban Growth Boundary was an issue that
affected every facet of the economy and the attention to it was critical. He
thought it would be good if the City had some incentives to offer
businesses, such as a revolving loan fund to provide for gap financing in a
SBA loan.

ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS
Reports from Councilors on Committee & Board Assignments

Councilor Geary stated that the Historic Landmarks Committee would
meet this week and would be looking at a proposed new building for First
Federal. Kids on the Block would be presenting information to the School
Board. He also attended the Air Show.

Page 8 of 11

26



Councilor Stassens stated that she had been checking in with citizens
about how they felt about the City and would have a report later.

Councilor Garvin stated that the Air Show went well. There were some
concerns about the noise but overall it was a well-planned and organized
event.

Councilor Peralta stated that the Mid Willamette Council of Governments
met and discussed priorities for the 2020-2021 legislative session. There
had been significant work done by the Yamhill Watershed Council in
parks around the City. This work was done by grants through the Oregon
Watershed Enhancement Board. That Board allocated $15,000 grants three
times a year with only a $5,000 match of cash or in-kind services (i.e.
volunteer/staff time). He thought they should ask the Yambhill Watershed
Council to work with City staff to apply for a grant to increase their
restoration work and to leverage City resources with the grant funding. He
had been meeting with downtown business owners and had discussed
various aspects of redevelopment. He also met with the State Historic
Preservation Office (SHPO) who echoed the requests of property owners
that they review the city codes about redevelopment of commercial and
residential properties in the downtown core. SHPO suggested putting
together a work group to review the code and make recommended
changes. In 2016 the Multnomah County Commission put forward a
charter amendment that enacted limits on campaign contributions and
made requirements on campaign disclosures on printed materials. He
thought that the Council should consider adopting requirements for
disclosures on paid communications in municipal elections. He put
together a presentation on homelessness that he would like to enter into
the record.

Council President Menke stated that the affordable Housing Task Force
would be meeting Wednesday. They would be looking at a CDBG grant
from the Oregon Housing Development Department and discussing the
multi-family housing land acquisition program. She had a chance to speak
with YCAP regarding funding for a Housing Position. She would be
attending the League of Oregon Cities Annual Conference this week.

Mayor Hill had attended the Oregon Transportation Committee meeting
where the Bypass was discussed. He also attended the Parkway
Committee meeting where support letters were being updated. They
needed $32 million to purchase the right-of-way for Phase 2 of the
Bypass. He reported on the McMinnville Water and Light meeting where
acquisition of water rights and a proposed water rate increase were
discussed. He would also be attending the League of Oregon Cities
Conference. He thought the Air Show was successful and that the Chiefs

Page 9 of 11

27



6.b.

did a great job organizing. He was there for three full days and thanked
everyone for their work and for the work on the negotiations to bring the
show to the City.

Department Head Reports

Police Chief Scales stated that the heavy lift for the Air Show was done by
the Captains, Sergeants, and Officers. They would have a formal debrief
with the Air Show within the month. There had been no major issues. He
commended the State Police for their work. The traffic mitigation plan
needed to be worked on for next year.

Fire Chief Leipfert stated that six law enforcement agencies coordinated
for the Air Show as well as five fire departments, two ambulance services,
and a hospital/first aid tent. It was pulled off in three months. The event
was successful and a tremendous effort was made by staff with limited
resources and a very short planning time frame. They had received a quote
for the consolidation study and more information would be brought to the
Council. It was noted that there would be full cost recovery on the Air
Show for the City.

Mayor Hill stated that on November 12 the Oregon Air Show would be
giving a report to the Council.

Councilor Geary asked about any complaints received about the Air Show.
Fire Chief Leipfert stated that there were some noise complaints. Mayor
Hill stated that he had also heard a few complaints.

Interim Finance Director Comfort stated that the City received the
Government Finance Officer Association’s Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting Award for 2017-18. It was the highest
form of recognition in governmental accounting and finance. She
announced effective September 30 the Municipal Court Team would be
transitioning to reporting to the Finance Department from the City
Attorney. This would provide separation of duties between the offices.

The City Manager and Mayor recognized City Recorder Bisset for her
work with the City over the last three years.

CONSENT AGENDA
a. Consider the Minutes of the July 17, 2019 City Council Work Session.

b. Consider request from 7-Eleven Inc. at 840 NE 3rd Street for an off-
premises liquor license.

Council President Menke MOVED to adopt the consent agenda;
SECONDED by Councilor Peralta. Motion PASSED unanimously.
Page 10 of 11

28



10.

ORDINANCE

Consider first reading with possible second reading of Ordinance

No. 5083: An Ordinance for the protection of elderly and disabled persons
living in Residential Support Facilities; repealing and replacing Ordinance
5059.

This item was postponed until after the election.
RESOLUTION

Consider Resolution No. 2019-61: A Resolution awarding the sole source
contract for the regular maintenance of the City of McMinnville Public
Safety Radio System.

Police Chief Scales stated this resolution would award the sole source
contract to Day Wireless for the public safety radio system. A new
simulcast system was installed in 2013, which was a three repeater system.
Day Wireless was the only provider for maintenance in the McMinnville
area. The contract with Day Wireless had been renewed in 2016 and was
going to expire on September 30, 2019. Day Wireless was again identified
by Motorola as the only provider authorized to work on the equipment.
The new contract was set for a five year period and would be a total of
$44,080.80 annually.

Councilor Garvin asked what prompted the five year contract rather than
the three year. Police Chief Scales said they were getting new radios and
they would not exceed the service life of the radio system and equipment.
He did not think it was too long of a contract.

Councilor Garvin MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2019-61, awarding
the sole source contract for the regular maintenance of the City of
McMinnville Public Safety Radio System; SECONDED by Councilor
Peralta. Motion PASSED unanimously.

ADJOURN: The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 pm.

Claudia Cisneros, City Recorder

Page 11 of 11

29



City of McMinnville

Fire Department

175 NE 1%t Street

McMinnville, OR 97128

(503) 435-5800
www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov

STAFF REPORT

DATE: March 17, 2020
TO: Mayor and City Councilors
FROM: Rich Leipfert, Fire Chief

SUBJECT: Ratification of Resolution No. 2020-18 Declaring Local State of Emergency for City
of McMinnville
STRATEGIC PRIORITY & GOAL:

COMMUNITY SAFETY & RESILIENCY
Proactively plan for & responsively maintain a safe & resilient community.

OBJECTIVE/S: Lead and plan for emergency preparedness

Report in Brief: On March 16", 2020, Mayor Hill declared a State of Emergency for the City of
McMinnville due to the COVID-19 Virus and its impact on the City of McMinnville. This action is
allowed by City Emergency Operations Plan adopted by City Council in 2009, and ORS 401.

Background: ORS Chapter 401, establishes the authority for the highest elected official of the City
Council to declare a state of emergency. The Mayor has the authority to declare a state of emergency
initially and the City Council should convene as soon as practical to ratify the State of Emergency
Declaration. This action is scheduled to take place at the City Council meeting on March 24",

Discussion: A declaration of a state of emergency by the City is the first step in accessing federal
emergency funding assistance due to the COVID-19. The declaration of a state of emergency facilitates
and provides the City Manager the authority to coordinate an effective response by redirecting funding
for emergency use as needed and suspending standard procurement procedures. It also provides for
the ability to modify work schedules of emergency responders to meet reduced staffing or increased
emergency responses and allows all departments the flexibility to change operations, staffing and
services to focus on changing needs in the community.

Attachments:
Resolution Number 2020-18
Signed Declaration of State of Emergency

Fiscal Impact: No changes

Recommendation: Council Ratify the Mayor’'s Declaration of a State of Emergency for the City of
McMinnville by approving Resolution No. 2020-18.

Page |1 30


http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-18

A Resolution for City of McMinnville, Oregon Ratifying the Declaration of State of
Emergency signed by Mayor Scott Hill on March 16, 2020.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Governor Kate Brown, on March 8, 2020 declared a state of emergency
due to the COVID-19 virus, finding that COVID-19 has created a threat to public health and
safety, and constitutes a statewide emergency under ORS 401.025(1); and

WHEREAS, The World Health Organization, on March 11, 2020 declared COVID-19
to be a pandemic threat that causes respiratory distress with the potential to cause serious
illness and loss of life; and

WHEREAS, The City of McMinnville may require significant resources to provide for
the health and safety of residents; and

WHEREAS, The State of Oregon, pursuant to ORS 401.309(1); authorizes the
governing body of Oregon cities and counties to declare a local state of emergency; and

WHEREAS, The City of McMinnville, pursuant to the Emergency Operation Plan
authorized the Mayor to declare a local state of emergency; and

WHEREAS, The Mayor of the City of McMinnville finds that conditions require a local
state of emergency; and

WHEREAS, The Mayor of the City of McMinnville signed a Declaration of State of
Emergency on March 16, 2020;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF MCMINNVILLE OREGON, HEREBY RATIFY THE DECLARATION OF STATE
OF EMERGENCY SIGNED BY MAYOR SCOTT HILL ON MARCH 16,2020 AND
AUTHORIZES THE FOLLOWING:

1. City Manager of the City of McMinnville, as the Emergency Manager as indicated
in the Emergency Operation Plan, may take any and all necessary steps
authorized by law to coordinate a response to this emergency; and

2. The state of emergency declaration provides the City Manager of the City of
McMinnville is authorized to reallocate any city funds for emergency use; and

3. City Manager of the City of McMinnville is authorized to coordinate an effective
response by redirecting funding for emergency use as needed and suspending
standard procurement procedures; and

4. This resolution is effective immediately and shall remain in effect until at least
May 1, 2020, but may be extended as necessary.

Resolution No. 2020-18
Effective Date: March 16, 2020
Page 1 of 2

31



Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a meeting held the 24t
day of March 2020 by the following votes:

Ayes:

Nays:

Approved this 24" day of March 2020.

MAYOR

Approved as to form: Attest:

City Attorney City Recorder

32



DECLARATION OF STATE OF EMERGENCY

To:  Brian Young, Yamhill County Emergency Manager,
Yambhill County Office of Emergency Management

From: Mayor Scott Hill,
City of McMinnville, Oregon

At '-3/ / “'/zpza{time) on /2., (date),

The COVID -19 Pandemic is spreading within the State of Oregon, Yamhill County

The current situation and conditions are:

Taking this action allows City staff greater flexibility to address hazards posed by the
COVID-19 by facilitating more expedient coordination with public agencies and quicker
deployment of resources and staffing to safeguard the community. It also provides for
the ability to modify work schedules of emergency responders to meet reduced staffing or
increased emergency responses due to the COVID-19.

The state of emergency declaration provides the City Manager with the latitude to
coordinate an effective response by redirecting funding for emergency use as needed and
suspending standard procurement procedures.

City Manager of the City of McMinnville, as the Emergency Manager, may take any and
all necessary steps authorized by law to coordinate a response to this emergency.

City Manager of the City of McMinnville is autherized to initiate emergency request for
aid from Yambhill County, the State of Oregon, and the Federal Emergency Management

Agency as necessary.

The Common Council of the City of McMinnville will ratify the Declaration of State of
Emergency with Resolution No. 2020-18 on March 24, 2020,

33



Additionally, the designation aides the City’s efforts when requesting assistance and/or
reimbursement for expenditures related to COVID -19 response.

The declaration, set to expire on May 1, 2020 may be renewed if necessary

The geographic boundaries of the emergency are:
The City Limits of McMinnville, OR 97128

WE DO HEREBY DECLARE THAT A STATE OF EMERGENCY NOW EXISTS IN
THE CITY OF MCMINNVILLE AND THAT THE CITY HAS EXPENDED OR WILL
SHORTLY EXPEND ITS NECESSARY AND AVAILABLE RESOURCES. WE
RESPECTFULLY REQUEST THAT THE COUNTY PROVIDE ASSISTANCE,
CONSIDER THE CITY AN "EMERGENCY AREA" AS PROVIDED FOR IN ORS
401, AND, AS APPROPRIATE, REQUEST SUPPORT FROM STATE AGENCIES
AND/OR THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT.

Signed: @M }bL-':—'

Title: Mayor Scott Hill Datc & Time: _3//b/2020  /-Z0pny

This request may be passed to the County via radio, telephone, or fax. The original
signed document must be sent to the County Emergency Management Office, with a copy
placed in the final incident package.

34



City of McMinnville

Community Development Department
231 NE Fifth Street

McMinnville, OR 97128

(503) 434-7312
www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov

STAFF REPORT

DATE: March 24, 2020
TO: Jeff Towery, City Manager
FROM: Larry Sherwood, Engineering Services Manager

SUBJECT: WRF Biosolids Storage Tank and Grit System Expansion

Report in Brief:

This action is the consideration of Resolution No. 2020-19 to award a Personal Services Contract to
Jacobs (formerly CH2MHIll) for Phase 1 of the Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Biosolids Storage
Tank and Grit System Expansion, Project 2019-10.

Background:

In May 2010, the City adopted both an updated Conveyance System Master Plan and an updated
Water Reclamation Facilities Plan that strikes a balance between conveyance and treatment to reach a
cost-effective comprehensive plan for wastewater management for a 20-year planning period through
2029. Additionally, the City adopted an associated Wastewater System Financial Plan. The adopted
financial plan indicated that the City can rely on a “pay as you go” approach to funding the significant
operations, maintenance, and capital needs contained in the wastewater master plans.

In alignment with the adopted Water Reclamation Facilities Plan, the City completed a project in 2016
to construct additional secondary treatment facilities, including a third oxidation ditch, third secondary
clarifier, and the expansion of the return activated sludge pumping facilities. In 2019, the City
completed another project identified in the plan to expand tertiary treatment capacity and upgrade the
UV equipment. The next capital project identified includes the need to address biosolids storage
capacity and improve grit removal processes to provide sufficient capacity for future peak hour flows.

The City stores liquid biosolids during the wet weather months, but quantities can occasionally
approach tank capacity. The City contracts the hauling and spreading of the product in farm fields
during the dry weather months, but the ability to land apply liquid biosolids may change suddenly due to
poor weather conditions, transportation issues, land ownership, or changes in regulatory requirements.
In addition, liquid biosolids cannot be taken to landfills. To provide flexibility in biosolids disposal options
and to prepare for future uncertainties and growth, the intent of this Project is to construct an additional
biosolids storage tank with mixing capabilities.

Discussion:

On November 13, 2019, a Request for Proposal (RFP) for “Consulting Services Related to the Design
and Construction of the Biosolids Storage Tank and Grit System Expansion” was published in the Daily
Journal of Commerce to solicit proposals from qualified firms or individuals to provide engineering

Page |1 35


http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/

services related to the design of the project. The RFP documents are included as Attachment 2 for the
Council's reference.

On December 20, 2019, a single proposal was received from Jacobs. The proposal was reviewed and
evaluated by a selection committee of Community Development Department staff. The evaluation
criteria, as outlined in the RFP documents, included a review of the firm’s experience and qualifications,
the understanding of the project and services requested, project management capabilities, consultant
availability, and cost estimating capabilities. Jacob’s RFP Submittal is included as Attachment 3 for the
Council's reference.

The results of the evaluation process concluded that Jacob’s proposal met all expectations and
requirements of the RFP. In addition, Jacob’s proposed staff includes team members involved in
several successful completed projects at the WRF. In short, the team proposed by Jacobs has vast
industry knowledge and historical experience with our plant, its operations, and our staff.

Per the RFP Documents, the City has negotiated the type of services, work scope, project team, sub-
consultants, fee, and schedule for Phase 1 of the project. Termed “Project Definition,” Phase 1 will
reevaluate the adopted Facilities Plan assumptions and recommendations related to the Headworks
and Biosolids processes, and recommend solutions to address biosolids storage and grit removal
capacity concerns. This holistic approach, where the consultant evaluates the process needs and
constraints before beginning major engineering and design efforts, has been successfully used with the
secondary treatment and UV treatment expansion projects.

Upon completion of Phase 1, future detailed design and construction phases are anticipated. Jacob’s
Scope and Fee Proposal for Phase 1 is included as Attachment 4 for the Council's reference.

The estimate for this scope of work is $ 255,541.

Attachments:

Resolution No. 2020.19
RFP Documents

Jacobs RFP Submittal
Scope of work and estimate
Vicinity Map

arwbdE

Fiscal Impact:

Funds for the design work are included in the adopted FY20 and proposed FY21 Wastewater Capital
Fund (77).

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached Resolution No. 2020-19 approving a
Personal Services Contract with Jacobs for the Phase 1 of the WRF Biosolids Storage Tank and Grit
System Expansion project.

Page |2 36



RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - 19

A Resolution approving the award of a Personal Services Contract to Jacobs for Phase
1 of the Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Biosolids Storage Tank and Grit System Expansion,
Project 2019-10.

RECITALS:

On November 13, 2019, a Request for Proposal for “Consulting Services Related to the
Design and Construction of the Biosolids Storage Tank and Grit System Expansion” was
published in the Daily Journal of Commerce to solicit qualified firms or individuals to provide
engineering services related to the design of the project.

On December 20, 2019, a single proposal was received from Jacobs. The proposal was
reviewed and evaluated by a selection committee of Community Development Department staff.
The evaluation criteria, as outlined in the RFP documents, included a review of the firm’s
experience and qualifications, the understanding of the project and services requested, project
management capabilities, consultant availability, and cost estimating capabilities.

The results of the evaluation process concluded that Jacob’s proposal met all
expectations and requirements of the RFP. In addition, Jacob’s proposed staff includes team
members involved in several successful completed projects at the WRF.

The City has negotiated the type of services, work scope, project team, sub-consultants,
fee, and schedule with Jacobs for Phase 1 of the project. Future detailed design and
construction phases are anticipated.

The estimate for this scope of work is $ 255,541.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows:

1. That entry into a Personal Services Contract with Jacobs for Phase 1 of the Water
Reclamation Facility (WRF) Biosolids Storage Tank and Grit System Expansion,
Project 2019-10, in the amount of $ 255,541 is hereby approved.

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the contract with
Jacobs.

3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall continue in
full force and effect until revoked or replaced.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting held the
24" day of March, 2020 by the following votes:

Ayes:

Nays:

Approved this 24" day of March, 2020.

MAYOR
Approved as to form: Attest:
City Attorney City Recorder

Resolution No. 2020-19
Effective Date: March 24, 2020 37
Page 1 of 1



CITY OF McMINNVILLE
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

QUALIFICATION BASED SELECTION (QBS) PROCESS
FOR CONSULTING SERVICES RELATED TO
THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF:

WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY

BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT SYSTEM EXPANSION
Project 2019 -10

PROPOSALS DUE: December 20, 2019 by 5:00 p.m.

SUBMIT PROPOSAL TO: Community Development Center
City of McMinnville
231 NE Fifth Street
McMinnville, OR 97128

REFER QUESTIONS TO: Larry Sherwood, Engineering Services Manager
(503) 474-5119 Direct; (503) 434-7312 Office
Larry.Sherwood@mcminnvilleoregon.gov

PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE: A mandatory pre-proposal conference and site tour for
all firms interested in submitting a proposal for the
project will be held at 2:00 p.m., Wednesday,
December 4, 2019 at the Water Reclamation
Facility, 3500 NE Clearwater Drive, McMinnville,
OR 97128

RFP ISSUE DATE: November 13, 2019

38


mailto:Larry.Sherwood@mcminnvilleoregon.gov

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

The City of McMinnville will receive written, sealed proposals until 5:00 p.m. on Friday, December
20, 2019 at the Community Development Center, 231 NE Fifth Street, McMinnville, OR 97128,
for the following services:

CONSULTING SERVICES RELATED TO THE
DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT SYSTEM EXPANSION
Project 2019-10

This solicitation and selection will be conducted using the Qualification Based Selection (QBS)
process. The intent is to select one firm to provide services. Facsimile or electronically transmitted
proposals will not be accepted. Late proposals will not be considered.

The Request for Proposal (RFP) documents may be obtained from Larry Sherwood, Engineering
Services Manager, 231 NE Fifth Street, McMinnville, OR 97128; (503) 474-5119 or (503) 434-
7312; Larry.Sherwood@mcminnvilleoregon.gov.

Information about the RFP can also be found on the City’s website at:
http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/rfps

A mandatory pre-proposal conference and site tour for all firms interested in submitting a proposal
for the project will be held at 2:00 p.m. on Wednesday, December 4, 2019 at the Water Reclamation
Facility located at 3500 NE Clearwater Drive, McMinnville. Attendance at the pre-proposal
conference is mandatory, and proposals received from firms that do not attend the pre-
proposal conference will not be considered.

Any addenda to this RFP will be distributed via email to those who receive proposal packets and
will also be posted on the City’s website at: http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/rfps

LARRY SHERWOOD
ENGINEERING SERVICES MANAGER
CITY OF McMINNVILLE

Dated & Published: Daily Journal of Commerce — November 13, 2019

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 2 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 39


mailto:Larry.Sherwood@mcminnvilleoregon.gov
http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/rfps
http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/rfps

PRELIMINARY
SECTION I

SECTION 11

SECTION Il

SECTION IV

SECTION V

ATTACHMENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

BACKGROUND AND SCOPE OF WORK

A INTRODUCTION

B. BACKGROUND

C. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

D. QUALIFICATIONS AND REQUESTED SERVICES

PROPOSAL PROCESS

RFP SCHEDULE

PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE

PROPOSAL DUE DATE

QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS

SOLICITATION PROTEST

PROPOSAL WITHDRAWL

CANCELLATION, DELAY OR SUSPENSION OF RFP SOLICITATION;
REJECTION OF PROPOSALS

IRREGULARITIES

PROPOSAL COSTS

AVAILABILITY OF RFP RESPONSES; PROPRIETARY
INFORMATION

PROPOSAL FORMAT AND EVALUATION CRITERIA

A ORGANIZATION OF PROPOSAL

B. TRANSMITTAL LETTER

C. EVALUATION CRITERIA

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING
QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE
PROJECT STAFFING

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

PROJECT SCHEDULE

COST ESTIMATING

PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND CONTRACT AWARD

RESPONSIVE PROPOSER
EVALUATION CRITERIA
METHOD OF SELECTION
NEGOTIATIONS

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD
RIGHT TO PROTEST
CONTRACT AWARD

DDITIONAL INFORMATION
WRF AS-BUILTS

OTMUO P

- .

oL E

FIGURE 1: AERIAL VIEW OF EXISTING WRF

FIGURE ES-7: RECOMMENDED SOLIDS MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY

FIGURE ES-8: RECOMMENDED FUTURE WRF SITE PLAN AND
PLANT LAYOUT

FIGURE 10-3: BIOSOLIDS HANDLING PROCESS FLOW SCHEMATIC
EXAMPLE PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

MEPR> OTMMmOD o>

w

o s

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 3 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 40



SECTION | - BACKGROUND AND SCOPE OF WORK

A. INTRODUCTION

The City of McMinnville is requesting proposals from multi-disciplinary design teams headed by
qualified, licensed, professional engineers to provide design and construction support services for
the Biosolids Storage Tank and Grit System Expansion project at the Water Reclamation
Facility (WRF) located at 3500 NE Clearwater Drive in McMinnville, Oregon. The City will
complete a Qualification Based Selection (QBS) process to select the most qualified design team
from among those firms that submit proposals according to the requirements of the RFP. Proposers
responding to the RFP do so solely at their expense, and the City is not responsible for any costs or
expenses associated with the preparation of the RFP.

B. BACKGROUND

The City of McMinnville has a population of nearly 35,000 and is located approximately 35 miles
southwest of Portland, in the heart of Oregon’s wine country. The City’s Community Development
Department is tasked with providing wastewater collection and treatment services to the residents,
businesses, and industries within the City’s urban growth boundary.

The City has invested over $90 million in the sanitary sewer system since 1991. The $28 million
Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) was completed in 1996, and since that time it has consistently
complied with some of the most stringent treatment requirements in the state. During its nearly 24
years of operation, the WRF and wastewater staff have been recognized with numerous compliance,
operations, and improvement project awards.

Major treatment processes include offsite influent pumping, screening, grit removal, secondary
treatment in advanced oxidation ditches, secondary clarification, tertiary clarification, filtration,
ultraviolet disinfection, and post aeration prior to discharge to the South Yamhill River. The solids
treatment processes include thickening and autothermal thermophilic aerobic digestion (ATAD).
Biosolids are stored onsite during the wet weather months, and land applied, in liquid form, during
the dry weather months. (Attachment 1- shows the existing WRF plant layout).

In May 2010, the City adopted both an updated Conveyance System Master Plan and an updated
Water Reclamation Facilities Plan that strikes a balance between conveyance and treatment to
reach a cost-effective comprehensive plan for wastewater management for a 20-year planning
period through 2029. (Note: The Conveyance System Master Plan and the Water Reclamation
Facilities Plan can be viewed on the City’s website at:

https://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/engineering/page/documents-publications

Concurrently, the City adopted an associated Wastewater System Financial Plan. The adopted
financial plan indicated that the City can rely on a “pay as you go” approach to funding the
significant operations, maintenance, and capital needs contained in the wastewater master plans.
The approximately $63 million of identified necessary wastewater capital improvements can be
accommodated under the City’s existing wastewater rate structure with only slight rate increases
and no additional debt over the life of the Plans.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 4 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 41


https://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/engineering/page/documents-publications

In 2011, the City completed a project to modify the oxidation ditches to maximize the efficiency
and capability of the existing secondary treatment infrastructure, and to improve the overall system
hydraulics so that critical equipment is not submerged during high plant flows.

In 2016, the City completed an expansion project which added secondary treatment facilities,
including a third oxidation ditch, third secondary clarifier, and the expansion of the return activated
sludge (RAS) pumping facilities.

In 2019, the City completed projects to upgrade the ultraviolet treatment and effluent filtration
systems, and to apply new coatings to the interior of ATAD #3 and all steel mechanisms in both
tertiary clarifiers.

Additionally, the City has focused on rehabilitation and replacement of aging pipelines in the
conveyance system (which currently totals over 150 miles of public sanitary sewer lines) to reduce
inflow and infiltration (1&1) in the system. The implementation of the private sewer lateral
ordinance, adopted by the City Council in 1997, has resulted in the evaluation of over 2,100 private
laterals, and property owner replacements and repairs to over 1,300 defective sewer laterals. These
efforts have significantly reduced unwanted storm water in the sanitary sewer system, increasing
the available capacity of the system and limiting the chances of system overflows.

While it is clear that the system needs are great, it is equally apparent that these plans represent the
continuation of a tremendous McMinnville success story. In short, the often difficult decisions and
commitments regarding investments in the City’s sanitary sewer pipelines and treatment facilities
over the last 20 years have positioned the City well to address the needs of the next planning period.

C. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

The adopted Water Reclamation Facilities Plan provides several alternatives for managing the
solids produced at the WRF. The plant’s processing technology currently produces Class A
biosolids, which allows the most flexibility in options for the beneficial reuse of the product. The
City intends to continue to produce Class A biosolids, and therefore solids management strategies
only consist of processes that continue to meet this criteria. In alignment with the recommendations
contained in Chapter 8 of the adopted facilities plan, the City is following alternative SM2, ATAD
Treatment and Dewatering Stabilization. (See Attachment 4 Figure 10-3)

The City stores liquid biosolids during the wet weather months, but quantities can occasionally
approach tank capacity. The City contracts the hauling and spreading of the product in farm fields
during the dry weather months, but the ability to land apply liquid biosolids may change suddenly
due to poor weather conditions, transportation issues, land ownership, or changes in regulatory
requirements. In addition, liquid biosolids cannot be taken to landfills.

To provide flexibility in biosolids disposal options and to prepare for future uncertainties and
growth, the intent of this Project is to construct an additional biosolids storage tank with mixing
capabilities. Future dewatering and dryer installation projects will produce a dried Class A product
that may be sold to the public, spread on local farm fields, or hauled to the landfill for disposal
giving the City options in an uncertain future.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 5 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 42



The grit removal process currently includes one vortex tank for grit removal. As part of this project,
a second vortex tank is planned to be constructed to provide sufficient capacity for future peak hour
flows and to enable staff to remove one grit tank from service for maintenance. Modifications to the
existing grit tank to correct existing hydraulic deficiencies will also be necessary.

The adopted Financial Plan allocates approximately $8.7-million between FY2019-20 and
FY?2021-22 for the completion of the design, permitting, and construction of the Biosolids Storage
Tank and Grit System Expansion project.

D. QUALIFICATIONS AND REQUESTED SERVICES

The selected consultant shall provide design and consulting services for the Biosolids Storage
Tank and Grit System Expansion project. Expected consultant work will include all services
necessary to design, permit, facilitate, construct and commission the planned facilities.

The City will work jointly with the selected consultant to develop a final, comprehensive scope of
work, project schedule, and associated consulting services fees for the proposed project. Submitted
proposals should demonstrate the consultant’s (particularly key staff) experience and expertise with
the following broad range of services that may be included in the project scope of work:

e  Wastewater treatment facility planning and pre-design activities, including design
alternative development and analysis;

e Land use planning and permitting (Note: The WRF is located on City owned property
outside of the current City limits for McMinnville. Therefore, the project will be subject
to Yamhill County land use planning and permitting requirements);

e  Structural, hydraulic, and process evaluation and recommendations for integrating and
incorporating the planned improvements into the existing WRF infrastructure;

e  Construction phasing evaluation and recommendations for integrating and incorporating
the planned improvements into the existing WRF infrastructure;

e  Facilitation, coordination, and management of both internal stakeholder input, review, and
approval; as well as required regulatory input, review, and permit approval;

e  Structural, electrical, mechanical, and geotechnical engineering services;
e  Accurate project cost estimating from pre-design through design completion;

e  Preparation of final project plans, specifications, and bid documents for the purpose of
construction bidding;

e  Construction bidding support services including facilitation of pre-bid meetings,
preparation and issuance of addenda, bid review, and recommendation of bid award,;

e  Construction support services, including technical assistance, onsite inspection, and
contract administration services; and

e  Facility start-up and commissioning assistance and support.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 6 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 43



SECTION II - PROPOSAL PROCESS

A. RFP SCHEDULE

The planned schedule of events for the RFP process is as follows (Note that the dates are
approximate and subject to change):

November 13, 2019 RFP advertised in Daily Journal of Commerce
December 4, 2019 (2:00pm) Mandatory pre-proposal conference and site tour

December 10, 2019 (5:00pm)  Deadline for questions, requests for clarification, and
solicitation protests

December 13, 2019 (5:00pm)  Deadline for City responses to questions, requests for
clarification, and solicitation protests

December 20, 2019 (5:00pm)  Proposals due

December 27, 2019 (tentative)  Selection of finalists to be interviewed *
January 14, 2020 (tentative) Interviews (if necessary)

January 17, 2020 (tentative) Written notification of highest ranked proposer
January 21, 2020 (tentative) Begin contract negotiations

February 3, 2020 (tentative) Notice of intent to award

February 13, 2020 (tentative) Deadline for written protest of award

February 14, 2020 (tentative)  City response to protest of award

February 25, 2020 (tentative) City Council award of contract

* The need for interviews will be determined by the City.

B. PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE

A mandatory pre-proposal conference and site tour for all firms interested in submitting a proposal
for the project will be held at 2:00 p.m. on Wednesday, December 4, 2019 at the Water Reclamation
Facility located at 3500 NE Clearwater Drive, McMinnville. Attendance at the pre-proposal
conference is mandatory, and proposals received from firms that do not attend the pre-
proposal conference will not be considered.

C. PROPOSAL DUE DATE

Proposers shall submit sealed proposals containing one (1) signed, clearly marked, easily
reproducible original and four (4) complete copies of the proposal to:

Larry Sherwood, Engineering Services Manager
City of McMinnville Community Development Center
231 NE Fifth Street

McMinnville, OR 97128

The sealed proposals are due no later than 5:00 p.m. on Friday, December 20, 2019. Proposals
received after the deadline will be rejected and returned unopened. Proposals may be mailed to the

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 7 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 44



City, but must be received by the Engineering Services Manager no later than the above stated date
and time. Facsimile and electronically transmitted proposals will not be accepted.

D. QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATION

Questions and requests for clarification regarding this RFP solicitation must be directed in writing
(either email or fax is acceptable) to:

Larry Sherwood, Engineering Services Manager
City of McMinnville

231 NE Fifth Street

McMinnville, OR 97128

Direct: (503) 474-5119
Office: (503) 434-7312
Email: Larry.Sherwood@mcminnvilleoregon.gov

The deadline for submitting questions or requests for clarification is seven (7) days prior to
the proposal due date. If a substantive clarification is necessary, an addendum will be issued no
later than 72 hours prior to the due date to all recorded holders of the RFP solicitation. Note that
statements made by the City are not binding upon the City unless confirmed by written addendum.

E. SOLICITATION PROTEST

A proposer who believes the proposal requirements or specifications are unnecessarily restrictive or
limit competition may submit a protest, or request to change, in writing. Protests or requests to
change any provision of this RFP, including the submittal requirements, evaluation criteria, or
contract terms, must be submitted no later than seven (7) days prior to the proposal due date.
No protest of the selection of a consultant, or award of a contract, because of a RFP provision,
submittal requirements, evaluation criteria, or contract term will be considered after such time.

The protest or request for change shall include:
e The reason for the protest or change;
e The proposed language to address the protest or change; and
e The reason(s) why the proposed language will benefit the City.

The City shall consider the protest or request for change, and may reject the protest or request for
change, issue an addendum, or cancel the RFP.

Protests or requests for change must be submitted in writing to:

Larry Sherwood, Engineering Services Manager
City of McMinnville

231 NE Fifth Street

McMinnville, OR 97128

Direct: (503) 474-5119
Phone: (503) 434-7312
Email: Larry.Sherwood@mcminnvilleoregon.qgov

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 8 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 45


mailto:Larry.Sherwood@mcminnvilleoregon.gov
mailto:Larry.Sherwood@mcminnvilleoregon.gov

F. PROPOSAL MODIFICATIONS OR WITHDRAWAL

Proposal modifications or erasures made before signing by the authorized representative must be
initialed in ink. Once submitted, proposals may be modified in writing before the time and date set
for proposal closing. Any modifications shall be prepared on company letterhead, signed by an
authorized representative, and state that the new document supersedes or modifies the prior
proposal. Modifications must be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly marked “Proposal
Modification”, and identifying the proposal title and closing date and time. Proposer may not
modify proposal after proposal closing time.

Any proposal may be withdrawn at any time before the proposal due date and time by providing a
written notification on company letterhead by an authorized person. The withdrawal of a proposal
will not prejudice the right of the proposer to file a new proposal.

G. CANCELLATION, DELAY OR SUSPENSION OF RFP SOLICITATION; REJECTION
OF PROPOSALS

Nothing in this RFP shall restrict or prohibit the City from cancelling, delaying, or suspending the
RFP solicitation at any time. The City may reject any or all proposals, in whole or in part, if in the
best interest of the City, as determined by the City.

H. IRREGULARITIES

The City reserves the right to waive any non-material irregularities or information contained in this
RFP, or in any received proposal.

. PROPOSAL COSTS

The City is not liable for any costs incurred by a proposer in the preparation and/or presentation of a
proposal. Execution of a contract by the City is subject to the availability of funds in the City’s
adopted budget(s).

J. AVAILABILITY OF RFP RESPONSES; PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Per the terms of ORS 279C.107, the City will open the proposals so as to avoid disclosing the
contents to competing proposers during the process of negotiation. Proposals will not be available
for public review until after the issuance of the Notice of Intent to Award.

The City will withhold from disclosure to the public trade secrets, as defined in ORS 192.501, and
information submitted to the City in confidence, as described in ORS 192.502, that are contained in
the proposal. Proposals must clearly identify such material, keep it separate, and provide separate
notice in writing of the status of this material to:

Larry Sherwood, Engineering Services Manager
City of McMinnville

231 NE Fifth Street

McMinnville, OR 97128

Direct: (503) 474-5119
Office: (503) 434-7312
Email: Larry.Sherwood@mcminnvilleoregon.qov

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 9 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 46


mailto:Larry.Sherwood@mcminnvilleoregon.gov

SECTION 11l - PROPOSAL FORMAT AND EVALUATION CRITERIA

A. ORGANIZATION OF PROPOSAL

Proposals shall be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward and concise
description of the proposer’s capabilities to satisfy the requirements of this RFP. Emphasis should
be on the completeness and clarity of the content of the proposal.

Proposers shall submit one (1) signed, clearly marked, easily reproducible original and four (4)
complete copies of the proposal. Proposals shall be easily recyclable; plastic and wire bindings are
discouraged.

The proposal shall not exceed twenty (20) pages in length, including pictures, charts, graphs, tables,
and text. Pages shall be 8 2” x 117, and the text font shall not be less than 10-point type. Resumes
of key individuals proposed to be involved in the project are exempted from the 20-page limit if
they are appended to the end of the proposal. All pages of the proposal shall be consecutively
numbered.

B. TRANSMITTAL LETTER

All proposals shall contain a transmittal letter identifying the authorized representative of the
business; the existing location(s) of the business; and a summary of the key provisions of the
proposal.

C. EVALUATION CRITERIA

Evaluation of the written response portion to the RFP will be based on a point system where
responses to the following requests for information will be scored by members of the Evaluation
Committee. The possible point values are listed by each evaluation criterion. Please see SECTION
IV - PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND CONTRACT AWARD for a summary of the complete
evaluation process.

Results obtained in reference checks may be used to score any relevant evaluation criteria.
Reference checks will be limited to information that is listed within the evaluation criteria.

The Evaluation Committee may contact Proposers for clarification of proposal responses; however
no additions, deletions or substitutions that cannot be termed as clarifications may be made to
proposals.

1. PROJECT UNDERSTANDING (Maximum 20 points)

Provide a detailed statement to demonstrate the Proposer understands the project, including
but not limited to:
. The purpose of the project;

. The proposer’s expertise and experience related to the specific tasks that must be
accomplished to complete the project;
o Key project milestones, including which milestones are most important and the
consequences of missing milestones;
. Key deliverables required by the project; and
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 10 OF 15

BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 47



o The proposer’s familiarity with the City organization, City staff, and the WRF
processes.

2. QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE (Maximum 30 points)

Provide a brief history of the Proposer’s firm, type of work executed, and capabilities.
Highlight recent and local project experience within the last ten (10) years, with a particular
emphasis on experience that is relevant to the type of work outlined in this RFP.

Provide project descriptions including project scope, type of facility, year completed, project
size, and project setting. For all projects listed, provide name of the owner, the owner’s
contact person and current phone number. Contact information must be current and
accurate to be considered. No special measures will be taken by the City to locate
incorrectly listed contacts.

The proposer shall highlight projects that demonstrate the qualifications, specialized
experience, and technical competence of the staff that will work directly with the City rather
than describing the general experience and qualifications of the firm. The City will not
consider promotional literature of a general nature.

Provide any other information that the proposer feels applicable to the evaluation of their
qualifications for accomplishing the project. Use this section to identify and address those
aspects of proposer’s services that distinguish the proposer from other proposers.

3. PROJECT STAFFING (Maximum 20 points)

Provide a staffing plan to demonstrate the structure and responsibilities of the proposed
project team. Include a project organization chart showing proposed staff, including any
proposed sub-consultants. (Note that resumes for key personnel should be appended to the
proposal).

List the qualifications of the project team members, highlighting specific knowledge and
experience that will be beneficial to this project. ldentify the length of employment for key
personnel with their respective firms, their intended responsibilities on this project, their
primary office location (noting their availability to the project location), and their experience
with, and/or knowledge of, the City organization, City staff, and the WRF processes.

List the project team member’s current assignments; their availability to work on this
project; and their time commitment for this project during design and construction
administration.

Describe how the proposed project team structure will benefit the project.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 11 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 48



4, PROJECT MANAGEMENT (Maximum 10 points)

Describe the proposer’s ability to manage projects, including information regarding

processes used to:

o Ensure project completion on schedule and within the allocated budget;

Coordinate the work of sub-consultants;

Facilitate City stakeholder input, review, and approval of project design elements;

Obtain the required regulatory input, review, and permit approval,

Minimize errors and omissions in the construction documents, noting the proposer’s

approach to addressing errors and/or omissions discovered in the documents after

construction has commenced;

. Perform effective contract administration and high quality construction inspection,
noting the proposer’s system for managing construction change issues; and

o Foster successful Owner — Design Team — Construction Contractor relations.

5. PROJECT SCHEDULE (Maximum 10 points)

Describe the proposer’s planned approach to managing the project schedule. Include a
timeline to deliver the project in organized and manageable increments. Provide a complete
list of anticipated design workshops, review periods, and key deliverables.

Describe how proposer will use City personnel, if at all, to assist during the project and
indicate the approximate time requirement.

6. COST ESTIMATING (Maximum 10 points)

This evaluation criterion will help determine how well the proposer estimates design and
construction costs. Describe proposer’s approach to developing cost estimates. Provide a
breakdown of a minimum of two (2) recently completed, related projects including:

. Proposed engineering cost for listed projects;

Associated engineering cost change orders for listed projects;

Proposer prepared construction cost estimates for listed projects; and

Actual construction costs for listed projects — noting the initial bid costs and total of
construction related change orders.

For the projects listed, provide the name of the owner, the owner’s contact person and
current phone number.

SECTION IV — PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND CONTRACT AWARD

A. RESPONSIVE PROPOSER

Proposers that submit all of the required information, on time and in the requested format, per the
requirements of this RFP will be considered responsive proposers. Only those proposals from
responsive proposers will be considered for evaluation. Non-responsive proposers will be notified
in writing that they did not meet the submittal requirements and will be disqualified for further
consideration.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 12 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 49



B. EVALUATION CRITERIA

The City will make a selection based on the evaluation of the written proposals from responsive
proposers, and any interviews it conducts. The City may elect to interview all responsive proposers
or only the highest ranked responsive proposers. The City reserves the right to make a selection
based only on the evaluation of the written proposals and not conduct any interviews. Written
proposals and interviews will be evaluated based on the following criteria:

EVALUATION CRITERIA POINTS

1. PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 20
2. QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 30
3. PROJECT STAFFING 20
4. PROJECT MANAGEMENT 10
5. PROJECT SCHEDULE 10
6. COST ESTIMATING 10

TOTAL POINTS POSSIBLE : 100

Information gained during an interview may be used to re-evaluate proposals according to the
above criteria.

C. METHOD OF SELECTION

A selection committee comprised of the Community Development Department staff will evaluate
each submitted written proposal and each interview, when applicable, to determine the responsive
proposer whose proposal is the most advantageous to the City based on the evaluation process and
evaluation criteria outlined in this RFP. The City will enter contract negotiations with the highest
ranked proposer.

D. NEGOTIATIONS

Following the evaluation process, the City will begin contract negotiations with the highest ranked
proposer.

The matters subject to negotiation shall be limited to the following:

1 Comprehensive scope of work;

2. Proposer personnel committed to the project;

3. Project schedule;

4 Professional fees, including reimbursable expenses; and

5 Agreement to the City’s contract terms (Note: A copy of the City’s standard
Personal Services Contract is attached to this RFP as Attachment 3).

In the event that a contract cannot be negotiated with the highest ranked proposer, negotiations will
be permanently discontinued, and the City will start contract negotiations with the next highest
ranked proposer. Nothing in this RFP shall restrict or prohibit the City from cancelling the
solicitation at any time.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 13 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 50



E. NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD

Based on successful negotiations with the highest ranked proposer, the City will issue a Notice of
Intent to Award.

F. RIGHT TO PROTEST

Proposers who disagree with the City’s selection decision may protest that decision. The judgment
used in the scoring by individual evaluators is not grounds for appeal. No protest because of a
solicitation provision, evaluation criteria, scope of work, specification or contract term that could
have been raised as a solicitation protest will be considered. The selection protest must be
submitted in writing within seven (7) calendar days of the Notice of Intent to Award. The protest
shall be submitted to the City Manager’s office at the following address:

Jeff Towery, City Manager
City of McMinnville

230 NE Second Street
McMinnville, OR 97128

The selection protest must state all the relevant facts that establish that all higher ranked proposers
were ineligible for selection because their proposals were nonresponsive or the proposer was not
responsible. A written decision will be sent to the protester.

The award by the City Council shall constitute a final decision of the City to award the contract if
no written protest of the award is filed with the City within seven (7) calendar days of the Notice of
Intent to Award. The City will not entertain a protest submitted after the time period established in
this section.

G. CONTRACT AWARD

The City Council will consider award of the project based on the selection committee’s
recommendation and will authorize the City Manager to execute a contract. The contract will be
awarded to the proposer who, in the opinion of the City Council, is the most qualified, and meets all
required specifications. The City may reject any proposal not in compliance with all prescribed
public procurement procedures and requirements and may reject for good cause any and all
proposals upon a finding of the City that it is in the public interest to do so. The City also reserves
the right to waive any informality in any proposal and to delete certain items listed in the proposal
as set forth herein.

SECTION V — ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

A. WRF AS-BUILTS

As-built drawings of the Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) in PDF format are available for
viewing on the City’s FTP site at: ftp://gis.ci.mcminnville.or.us/wrfasbuilts

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PAGE 14 OF 15
BIOSOLIDS STORAGE TANK AND GRIT EXPANSION, PROJECT 2019-10 51


ftp://gis.ci.mcminnville.or.us/wrfasbuilts

F l

- BIOSOLIDS
[ STORAGE

BIQFILTER}—.

~ - .,

% L A;ADg -
HEADWORKS ﬁcgs

SPLIER . BRIT
BOX L*BASIN

AERATION
AERATION
BASIN #1 e
RV DUMP = :
' ML SPLITTER *
BOX P
F— S ',._-a“}.
£ T s@ RY
-"%C;OQEQEY RETURN - e I8
§n = SHpoe v &
S W PUMP . A
W STATION .
ELECTRICAL S —
SUBSTATION o
: TERTIARY . TERTIARY
CLARIFIER - CLARIFIER
#1 42 #
- e ,(;
EFFLUENT ™ — #.
’ = FILTERS :
' 4
: DISI%&:TIO _
ADMINISTRATION | e
"BUILDING
\'1. iy n ¥

(=l B s Rl

AERATION
— BASINES..

SECONDARY.
CLA#1§IFIER ;

WRF FACILITY
PLANT LAYOUT

2019



sherwol
Rectangle

sherwol
Text Box
WRF FACILITY PLANT LAYOUT 2019

sherwol
Typewritten Text
BIOSOLIDS
 STORAGE

sherwol
Typewritten Text
AERATION 
 BASIN #1


sherwol
Typewritten Text
AERATION 
 BASIN #2

sherwol
Typewritten Text
AERATION 
 BASIN #3

sherwol
Typewritten Text
SECONDARY
  CLARIFIER
     #1

sherwol
Typewritten Text
SECONDARY
  CLARIFIER
       #2

sherwol
Typewritten Text
SECONDARY
  CLARIFIER
       #3

sherwol
Typewritten Text
TERTIARY
CLARIFIER
     #1

sherwol
Typewritten Text
RETURN
SLUDGE
PUMP 
STATION

sherwol
Typewritten Text
TERTIARY
CLARIFIER
     #2

sherwol
Typewritten Text
ML SPLITTER 
      BOX

sherwol
Typewritten Text
EFFLUENT
 FILTERS

sherwol
Typewritten Text
       UV 
DISINFECTION

sherwol
Typewritten Text
ADMINISTRATION
    BUILDING

sherwol
Typewritten Text
HEADWORKS
  BUILDING

sherwol
Typewritten Text
BIOFILTER

sherwol
Typewritten Text
ATAD
REACTORS

sherwol
Typewritten Text
GRIT 
BASIN

sherwol
Typewritten Text
SPLITTER 
   BOX

sherwol
Typewritten Text
ELECTRICAL
SUBSTATION 

sherwol
Typewritten Text
RV DUMP
STATION


Storage

Gravity Liquid
Belt 1-’ ATAD Biosolids
Thickening Storage

|:| Existing

B FUTURE PROJECTS

[ PROPOSED PROJECT

Only dewatered
ATAD Biosolids
can be land

applied

Direct Sale to
Public*

Figure ES-7

McMinnville Water Reclamation Facility

WEST YOST

RECOMMENDED SOLIDS MANAGEMENT STRATEGY;, “l

ASSOCIATES

Consulting Engineers



sherwol
Oval

sherwol
Typewritten Text
PROPOSED
1MG LIQUID 
BIOSOLIDS
STORAGE
   TANK

sherwol
Rectangle

sherwol
Text Box
    PROPOSED PROJECT

sherwol
Text Box
FUTURE PROJECTS


PLANNED
LOCATION
BIOSOLIDS
STORAGE

i |

| =,

SECONDARY

CLARIFIER

CONTROL SYSTEM

SECONDARY
CLARIFIER

RETURN

\

/

)«—GRIT BASIN
HEADWORKS ISLUDGE|

@

BUILDING [«AERATION BASIN |

STATION

PUMP

LEGEND

| BASIN DEWATERING®
PUMP STATION

SECONDARY

CLARIFIER

DISINFECTION

e

TUTTHTTITTTUD

e

SPLITTER
{ 1 BOX
BIOSOLIDS
STORAGE SEPTAGE
BIOFILTER —p» RECEIVING
‘. B
PROCESSED
BIOSOLIDS ROAD “A’
TORAGE
STORAG BIOSOLIDS / RAW SEWAGE[]
PROCESSING VALVE VAULT

BUILDING

ELECTRICAL
SUBSTATION

ADMINISTRATION &

RV PUMPING FACILITY

——— Existing

New

_____ Future

ROAD "B’

Figure ES-8

McMinnville Water Reclamation Facility

RECOMMENDED SITE PLAN AND PLANT LAYOUT

B4ASSOCIATES



sherwol
Oval

sherwol
Oval

sherwol
Typewritten Text
PLANNED
LOCATION

sherwol
Oval

sherwol
Line

sherwol
Line

sherwol
Typewritten Text
Future


— ABI
— AL
— B
— BYP
— CHS

WAS & CHS

— TS =1
g L FM BIOSOLIDS COMPRESSOR
2
TS TRANSFER
PUMPS
CENTRATE/
ATAD PUMP 5 FILTRATE TO
_Q_. sl SECONDARY
! TREATMENT
= ' A
om
ATAD PUMP DS . !
L |
1 SN P --- - -—— ————
TS WETWELL —FQ o TEMr "' i - *' BIOSOLIDS DISPOSAL/
I j BENEFICIAL USE
” " k DEWATERING ! STABILIZATION PROCESSED
Q B PUMP A - S . BIOSOLIDS
[a) LIS |
o —’Q— BIDS 3 ' Lo STORAGE
o 1
" ¥
B/DS R =y BIOSOLIDS BENEFICIAL USE
B PUMP e
i
— = "
B/DS o
I i
™ - _I 1
- 1
1
v DB . ,
FLOW STREAM IDENTIFICATION LEGEND
— AERATION BASIN INFLUENT
— ALUM ioti
— BIOSOLIDS EXIStIng
— BYPASS
— CHEMICAL SLUDGE T T====~" NeW

— DB
— DS

— EF

— GR

— ML

— NAOH
— NAOCL
— PDD
— PO

— RAS
— RS

— SE

— SEP
— SSM
—TE
—TF
—Ts

— WAS
— M

— GBT

— DEWATERED BIOSOLIDS

— DIGESTED SLUDGE

— EFFLUENT

— GRIT SLURRY

— MIXED LIQUOR

— SODIUM HYDROXIDE

— SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

— PLANT DRAIN DISCHARGE
— POLYMER SOLUTION

— RETURN ACTIVATED SLUDGE
— RAW SEWAGE

— SECONDARY EFFLUENT

— SEPTAGE

— SECONDARY SCUM

— TERTIARY EFFLUENT

— THICKENING FILTRATE

— THICKENED SLUDGE

— WASTE ACTIVATED SLUDGE
— FLOWMETER

— GRAVITY BELT THICKENERS

* Raw TS dewatered separately from ATAD or stored sludge for landfilling

Figure 10-3

McMinnville Water Reclamation Facility

BIOSOLIDS HANDLING
PROCESS FLOW SCHEMATIC

WEST YOST

~

BBASSOCIATES

Consulting Engineers




CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
for
TITLE

This Contract is between the CITY OF McMINNVILLE, a municipal corporation of the State of
Oregon (City) and CONSULTANT. (Contractor). The City’s Project Manager for this Contract is Roy
Markee, Project Manager.

The parties mutually covenant and agree as follows:

1. Effective Date and Duration. This contract is effective on the date at which every party has
signed the contract and will expire, unless otherwise terminated or extended, on COMPLETION DATE.

2. Statement of Work. The work to be performed under this contract consists of PROJECT SCOPE
AND TITLE. The statement of work, including the delivery schedule for the work, is contained in Exhibit
A.

3. Consideration.

a. City agrees to pay Contractor for actual hours worked, and allowable expenses incurred
for accomplishing the work required by this contract, with a total sum not to exceed COST.

b. Contractor will furnish with each invoice for services an itemized statement showing

both the work performed and the number of hours devoted to the project by the Contractor and its
agents. City will pay the Contractor for services within 30 days of receiving an itemized bill that has
been approved by the Project Manager.

C. City certifies that sufficient funds are available and authorized for expenditure to
finance the cost of this contract.

4, Additional Services. Additional services, not covered in Exhibit A, will be provided if mutually
agreed upon by the parties and authorized or confirmed in writing by the City, and will be paid for by the
City as provided in this Contract in addition to the compensation authorized in subsection 3a. If
authorized by the City, the additional services will be performed under a series of Task Orders defining
the services to be performed, time of performance, and cost for each phase of services.

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE]

56



CONTRACTOR DATA, CERTIFICATION, AND SIGNATURE

Name (please print):

Address:

Social Security #:

Federal Tax ID #:

State Tax ID #:

Citizenship: Nonresident alien Yes No

Business Designation (check one): Individual ___ Sole Proprietorship __ Partnership
Corporation ___ Government/Nonprofit

The above information must be provided prior to contract approval. Payment information will be

reported to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) under the name and taxpayer I.D. number provided
above. (See IRS 1099 for additional instructions regarding taxpayer ID numbers.) Information not

matching IRS records could subject you to 31 percent backup withholding.

I, the undersigned, understand that the Standard Terms and Conditions for Personal Services Contracts
and Exhibits A, B, C, and D are an integral part of this contract and agree to perform the work described
in Exhibit A in accordance with the terms and conditions of this contract; certify under penalty of perjury
that I/my business am not/is not in violation of any Oregon tax laws; and certify | am an independent
contractor as defined in ORS 670.600.

Signed by Contractor:

Signature/Title Date

NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR: This contract does not bind the City of McMinnville unless and until it has
been fully executed by the appropriate parties.

CITY OF McMINNVILLE SIGNATURE

Approved:
City Manager or Designee Date
Reviewed:
City Attorney or Designee Date

57



CITY OF McMINNVILLE
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS

1. Contractor is Independent Contractor.

a. Contractor will perform the work required by this contract as an independent
contractor. Although the City reserves the right (i) to determine (and modify) the delivery schedule for
the work to be performed and (ii) to evaluate the quality of the completed performance, the City cannot
and will not control the means or manner of the Contractor’s performance. The Contractor is
responsible for determining the appropriate means and manner of performing the work.

b. The Contractor represents and warrants that Contractor (i) is not currently an employee
of the federal government or the State of Oregon, and (ii) meets the specific independent contractor
standards of ORS 670.600, as certified on the Independent Contractor Certification Statement attached
as Exhibit D.

C. Contractor will be responsible for any federal or state taxes applicable to any
compensation or payment paid to Contractor under this contract.
d. If Contractor is a contributing member of the Public Employees’ Retirement System, City

will withhold Contractor’s contribution to the retirement system from Contractor’s compensation or
payments under this contract and make a corresponding City contribution. Contractor is not eligible for
any federal Social Security, unemployment insurance, or workers’ compensation benefits from
compensation or payments to Contractor under this contract, except as a self-employed individual.

2. Subcontracts and Assignment. Contractor will not subcontract any of the work required by this
contract, or assign or transfer any of its interest in this contract, without the prior written consent of the
City. Contractor agrees that if subcontractors are employed in the performance of this contract, the
Contractor and its subcontractors are subject to the requirements and sanctions of ORS Chapter 656,
Workers’ Compensation.

3. No Third Party Beneficiaries. City and Contractor are the only parties to this contract and are
the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this contract gives or provides any benefit or
right, whether directly, indirectly, or otherwise, to third persons unless such third persons are
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of
this contract.

4. Successors in Interest. The provisions of this contract will be binding upon and will inure to the
benefit of the parties, and their respective successors and approved assigns, if any.

5. Early Termination

a. The City and the Contractor, by mutual written agreement, may terminate this Contract
at any time.

b. The City, on 30 days written notice to the Contractor, may terminate this Contract for
any reason deemed appropriate in its sole discretion.

C. Either the City or the Contractor may terminate this Contract in the event of a breach of

the Contract by the other party. Prior to termination, however, the party seeking the termination will
give to the other party written notice of the breach and of the party’s intent to terminate. If the Party
has not entirely cured the breach within 15 days of the notice, then the party giving the notice may
terminate the Contract at any time thereafter by giving a written notice of termination.

58



6. Payment on Early Termination

a. If this contract is terminated under 5(a) or 5(b), the City will pay the Contractor for work
performed in accordance with the Contract prior to the termination date. Payment may be pro-rated as
necessary.

b. If this contract is terminated under 5(c) by the Contractor due to a breach by the City,
then the City will pay the Contractor as provided in subsection (a) of this section.

C. If this contract is terminated under 5(c) by the City due to a breach by the Contractor,

then the City will pay the Contractor as provided in subsection (a) of this section, subject to set off of
excess costs, as provided for in section 7, Remedies.

7. Remedies

a. In the event of termination under 5(c) by the City due to a breach by the Contractor, the
City may complete the work either itself, by agreement with another contractor, or by a combination
thereof. In the event the cost of completing the work exceeds the remaining unpaid balance of the total
compensation provided under this contract, the Contractor will pay to the City the amount of the
reasonable excess.

b. The remedies provided to the City under section 5 and section 7 for a breach by the
Contractor are not exclusive. The City will also be entitled to any other equitable and legal remedies
that are available.

C. In the event of breach of this Contract by the City, the Contractor’s remedy will be
limited to termination of the Contract and receipt of payment as provided in section 5(c) and 6(b).

8. Access to Records. Contractor will maintain, and the City and its authorized representatives will
have access to, all books, documents, papers and records of Contractor which relate to this contract for
the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcripts for a period of three years after
final payment. Copies of applicable records will be made available upon request. Payment for the cost
of copies is reimbursable by the City.

9. Ownership of Work. All work products of the Contractor, including background data,
documentation, and staff work that is preliminary to final reports, and which result from this contract,
are the property of the City. Contractor will retain no ownership interests or rights in the work product.
Use of any work product of the Contractor for any purpose other than the use intended by this contract
is at the risk of the City.

10. Compliance with Applicable Law. Contractor will comply with all federal, state, and local laws
and ordinances applicable to the work under this contract, including, without limitation, the provisions
of ORS 279B.220, 279B.230, and 279B.235, as set forth on Exhibit B. Without limiting the foregoing,
Contractor expressly agrees to comply with: (1) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Section V of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub L No. 101-336), ORS
659A.142, and all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to those laws; and (iv) all
other applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statues, rules, and
regulations.

11. Indemnity and Hold Harmless

a. Except for the professional negligent acts covered by paragraph 11.b., Contractor will
defend, save, hold harmless, and indemnify the City, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims,
suits, or actions of whatsoever nature resulting from or arising out of the activities of Contractor or its
officers, employees, subcontractors, or agents under this contract.

59



b. Contractor will defend, save, hold harmless, and indemnify the City, its officers, agents,
and employees from all claims, suits, or actions arising out of the professional negligent acts, errors, or
omissions of Contractor or its officers, employees, subcontractors, or agents under this contract.

12. Insurance. Contractor will provide insurance in accordance with Exhibit C.

13. Waiver. The failure of the City to enforce any provision of this contract will not constitute a
waiver by the City of that or any other provision.

14. Errors. The Contractor will perform such additional work as may be necessary to correct errors
in the work required under this contract without undue delays and without additional cost.

15. Governing Law. The provisions of this contract will be construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of Oregon and ordinances of the City of McMinnville, Oregon. Any action or suits involving any
guestion arising under this contract must be brought in the appropriate court in Yamhill County, Oregon.
Provided, however, if the claim must be brought in a federal forum, then it will be brought and
conducted in the United States District Court for the District of Oregon.

16. Severability. If any term or provision of this contract is declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions will
not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties will be construed and enforced as if the
contract did not contain the particular term or provision held invalid.

17. Merger Clause. THIS CONTRACT AND ATTACHED EXHIBITS CONSTITUTE THE ENTIRE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES. NO WAIVER, CONSENT, MODIFICATION, OR CHANGE OF TERMS
OF THIS CONTRACT WILL BIND EITHER PARTY UNLESS IN WRITING, SIGNED BY BOTH PARTIES. ANY
WAIVER, CONSENT, MODIFICATION, OR CHANGE, IF MADE, WILL BE EFFECTIVE ONLY IN THE SPECIFIC
INSTANCE AND FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE GIVEN. THERE ARE NO UNDERSTANDINGS, AGREEMENTS,
OR REPRESENTATIONS, ORAL OR WRITTEN, NOT SPECIFIED HEREIN REGARDING THIS CONTRACT. BY ITS
SIGNATURE, CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES IT HAS READ AND UNDERSTANDS THIS CONTRACT AND
AGREES TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

60



EXHIBIT A
STATEMENT OF THE WORK

(See attached)

61



EXHIBIT B
COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW

279B.220 Conditions concerning payment,
contributions, liens, withholding. Every public
contract shall contain a condition that the
contractor shall:

(1) Make payment promptly, as due, to all
persons supplying to the contractor labor or
material for the performance of the work provided
for in the contract.

(2) Pay all contributions or amounts due the
Industrial Accident Fund from the contractor or
subcontractor incurred in the performance of the
contract.

(3) Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or
prosecuted against the state or a county, school
district, municipality, municipal corporation or
subdivision thereof, on account of any labor or
material furnished.

(4) Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums
withheld from employees under ORS 316.167. [2003
c.794 §76a]

279B.230 Condition concerning payment for

medical care and providing workers’ compensation.

(1) Every public contract shall contain a condition
that the contractor shall promptly, as due, make
payment to any person, copartnership, association
or corporation furnishing medical, surgical and
hospital care services or other needed care and
attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the
employees of the contractor, of all sums that the
contractor agrees to pay for the services and all
moneys and sums that the contractor collected or
deducted from the wages of employees under any
law, contract or agreement for the purpose of
providing or paying for the services.

(2) Every public contract shall contain a clause or
condition that all subject employers working under
the contract are either employers that will comply
with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt
under ORS 656.126. [2003 ¢.794 §76c]

279B.235 Condition concerning hours of labor;
compliance with pay equity provisions; employee
discussions of rate of pay or benefits. (1) Except as
provided in subsections (3) to (6) of this section,
every public contract subject to this chapter must
provide that:

(a) A contractor may not employ an employee for
more than 10 hours in any one day, or 40 hours in
any one week, except in cases of necessity,
emergency or when the public policy absolutely
requires otherwise, and in such cases, except in
cases of contracts for personal services designated
under ORS 279A.055, the contractor shall pay the
employee at least time and a half pay for:

(A)(i) All overtime in excess of eight hours in any
one day or 40 hours in any one week if the work
week is five consecutive days, Monday through
Friday; or

(i) All overtime in excess of 10 hours in any one
day or 40 hours in any one week if the work week is
four consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and

(B) All work the employee performs on Saturday
and on any legal holiday specified in ORS 279B.020.

(b) The contractor shall comply with the
prohibition set forth in ORS 652.220, that
compliance is a material element of the contract and
that a failure to comply is a breach that entitles the
contracting agency to terminate the contract for
cause.

(c) The contractor may not prohibit any of the
contractor’s employees from discussing the
employee’s rate of wage, salary, benefits or other
compensation with another employee or another
person and may not retaliate against an employee
who discusses the employee’s rate of wage, salary,
benefits or other compensation with another
employee or another person.

(2) A contractor shall give notice in writing to
employees who work on a public contract, either at
the time of hire or before work begins on the
contract, or by posting a notice in a location
frequented by employees, of the number of hours
per day and days per week that the contractor may
require the employees to work.

(3) A public contract for personal services, as
described in ORS 279A.055, must provide that the
contractor shall pay the contractor’s employees who
work under the public contract at least time and a
half for all overtime the employees work in excess of
40 hours in any one week, except for employees
under a personal services public contract who are
excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29
U.S.C. 201 to 209 from receiving overtime.

62



(4) A public contract for services at a county fair,
or for another event that a county fair board
authorizes, must provide that the contractor shall
pay employees who work under the public contract
at least time and a half for work in excess of 10
hours in any one day or 40 hours in any one week. A
contractor shall notify employees who work under
the public contract, either at the time of hire or
before work begins on the public contract, or by
posting a notice in a location frequented by
employees, of the number of hours per day and days
per week that the contractor may require the
employees to work.

(5)(a) Except as provided in subsection (4) of this
section, a public contract for services must provide
that the contractor shall pay employees at least time
and a half pay for work the employees perform
under the public contract on the legal holidays
specified in a collective bargaining agreement or in
ORS 279B.020 (1)(b)(B) to (G) and for all time the
employee works in excess of 10 hours in any one

day or in excess of 40 hours in any one week,
whichever is greater.

(b) A contractor shall notify in writing employees
who work on a public contract for services, either at
the time of hire or before work begins on the public
contract, or by posting a notice in a location
frequented by employees, of the number of hours
per day and days per week that the contractor may
require the employees to work.

(6) This section does not apply to public
contracts:

(a) With financial institutions as defined in ORS
706.008.

(b) Made pursuant to the authority of the State
Forester or the State Board of Forestry under ORS
477.406 for labor performed in the prevention or
suppression of fire.

(c) For goods or personal property. [2003 c.794
§77; 2005 c.103 §8f; 2015 c.454 §4]

63



EXHIBIT C
INSURANCE
(The Project Manager must answer and initial 2, 3, and 4 below).

During the term of this contract, Contractor will maintain in force at its own expense, each insurance
noted below:

Workers Compensation insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires subject
employers to provide Oregon workers’ compensation coverage for all their subject workers.
(Required of contractors with one or more employees, unless exempt under ORS 656.027).

Il Required by City [] 1 am exempt. Signed

Professional Liability insurance with a combined single limit of not less than

Il $1,200,000, [ ]$2,000,000, or [_] $3,000,000 each claim, incident, or occurrence. This is to
cover damages caused by error, omission, or negligent acts related to the professional services
to be provided under this contract. The coverage must remain in effect for at least ] one year
[]two years after the contract is completed.

[l Required by City [ ] Not required by City By:

General Liability insurance, on an occurrence basis, with a combined single limit of not less than
[] $1,200,000, [ _]$2,000,000, or[_] $3,000,000 each occurrence for Bodily Injury and Property
Damage. It must include contractual liability coverage. This coverage will be primary and non-
contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

[ ] Required by City [} Not required by City By:

Automobile Liability insurance with a combined single limit, or the equivalent of not less than
[ ]1$1,200,000, [_]$2,000,000, or[_] $3,000,000 each accident for Bodily Injury and Property
Damage, including coverage for owned, hired or non-owned vehicles.

[] Required by City [J] Not required by City By:

Notice of cancellation or change. There will be no cancellation, material change, reduction of
limits, or intent not to renew the insurance coverage(s) without prior written notice from the
Contractor or its insurer(s) to the City.

Certificates of insurance. As evidence of the insurance coverages required by this contract, the
Contractor will furnish acceptable insurance certificates to the City at the time the Contractor
returns the signed contracts. For general liability insurance and automobile liability insurance,
the certificate will provide that the City, and its agents, officers, and employees, are additional
insureds, but only with respect to Contractor’s services to be provided under this contract. The
certificate will include the cancellation clause, and will include the deductible or retention level.
Insuring companies or entities are subject to City acceptance. If requested, complete copies of
insurance policies will be provided to the City. The Contractor will be financially responsible for
all pertinent deductibles, self-insured retentions, and self-insurance.

64



EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION STATEMENT FOR INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
(Contractor complete A or B below, Project Manager complete C below.)

A. CONTRACTOR IS A CORPORATION

CORPORATION CERTIFICATION: | am authorized to act on behalf of the entity named below, and certify
under penalty of perjury that it is a corporation.

Entity Signature Date

B. CONTRACTOR IS INDEPENDENT.

Contractor certifies he/she meets the following standards:

1. The individual or business entity providing services is free from direction and control over the means
and manner of providing the services, subject only to the right of the person for whom the services
are provided to specify the desired results,

2. The individual or business entity is licensed under ORS chapters 671 or 701 if the individual or
business entity provides services for which a license is required by ORS chapters 671 or 701,

3. The individual or business entity is responsible for obtaining other licenses or certificates necessary to
provide the services,

4. The individual or business entity is customarily engaged in an independently established business, as
any three of the following requirements are met (please check three or more of the following):
_____A.The person maintains a business location i) that is separate from the business or work
location of the person for whom the services are provided or ii) that is in a portion of the
person’s residence and that portion is used primarily for the business.

B. The person bears the risk of loss related to the business or the provision of services as shown
by factors such as i) the person enters into fixed-price contracts, ii) the person is required to
correct defective work, iii) the person warrants the services provided, or iv) the person
negotiates indemnification agreements or purchases liability insurance, performance bonds,
or errors and omissions insurance.

C. The person provides contracted services for two or more different persons within a 12
month period or the person routinely engages in business advertising, solicitation, or other
marketing efforts reasonably calculated to obtain new contracts to provide similar services.

D. The person makes a significant investment in the business, through means such as i)
purchasing tools or equipment necessary to provide the services, ii) paying for the premises
or facilities where the services are provided, or iii) paying for licenses, certificates, or
specialized training required to provide the services.

E. The person has the authority to hire other persons to provide or to assist in providing the
services and has the authority to fire those persons.

Contractor Signature Date

(Project Manager complete C below.)
C. CITY APPROVAL

ORS 670.600 Independent contractor standards. As used in various provisions of ORS chapters 316,
656, 657, 671, and 701, an individual or business entity that performs services for remuneration will be
considered to perform the services as an “independent contractor” if the standards of this section are
met. The contractor meets the following standards:

1. The Contractor is free from direction and control over the means and manner of providing the
services, subject only to the right of the City to specify the desired results,

2. The Contractor is responsible for obtaining licenses under ORS chapters 671 and 701 when these
licenses are required to provide the services,

65




3. The Contractor is responsible for obtaining other licenses or certificates necessary to provide the
services,

4. The Contractor has the authority to hire and fire employees to provide or assist in providing the
services, and

5. The person is customarily engaged in an independently established business as indicated in B. 4
above.

Project Manager Signature Date

66




PROPOSAL FOR

Water Reclamation Facility

Biosolids Storage Tank
and Grit System Expansion
Project 21 9-10

Submitted to

City of McMinnville

December 20, 2019


sherwol
Rectangle


Transmittal Letter JaCObS

December 20, 2019

Jacobs Corvallis

Mr. Larry Sherwood, Engineering Services Manager 1100 NE Circle Blvd,, Suite 300
City of McMinnville Community Development Center Corvallis, OR 97330
231 NE Fifth Street F +1.541.752.0276
McMinnville, OR 97128 T41.541,752,4271

www.jacobs.com
Subject: Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Biosolids Storage Tank and Grit System Expansion

Dear Larry,

The success of the Biosolids Storage Tank and Grit System Expansion project will benefit the City of McMinnville (the City) and its
ratepayers for decades, Since the 1990s with our work on the treatment plant original water reclamation facility (WRF) project, and
we have sustained our partnership with McMinnville through collaboration on subsequent improvement projects, We look forward to
continuing to be a part of the McMinnville success story. Our current proposal reflects a thorough understanding of your goals and a
thoughtful approach to deliver another successful project.

Our experienced team will bring this approach to reality. Our Project Manager, Josh Kach, has been working with you since 2011 and
is committed to delivering a successful project. He is leading the same team that delivered the last two projects for the City - both
on time, on budget, and with excellent quality. The team includes Luke Scoggins, the previous WRF lead structural engineer who is
familiar with the challenging soil conditions at the WRF and is well-positioned to optimize tank design. To address the headworks
and biosolids aspects of the current project, Josh has augmented the core team with specialists, including Brett Reistad, located in
Carvallis, with over 20 years' experience in alternatives evaluations, design, and startup of biosolids treatment processes; Dave Derke
with 25 years Autothermal Thermophilic Aerobic Digestion (ATAD) experience on 15 ATAD projects; former WRF operator Ernie
Strahm to facilitate seamless interaction between the Jacobs engineering team anc the current WRF operations staff: and Bryan
Youker with almost three decades of grit system and headworks design experience.

We will apply our thorough understanding of the existing facility, including the dynamic process modeling recently developed

by Bill Leaf, to efficiently evaluate the plant's current solids processing status. We will incorporate the results into an alternatives
analysis that examines the recommendations from the 2009 Facilities Plan, along with new options. This includes a close look at the
ATAD process — the core of the existing solids stabilization process. Our team will work with the City to recommend a path forward
that provides the greatest value while meeting project milestones. The last WRF praject included expansion of the tertiary filters;
however, Josh and his team recormmended upgrades, rather than expansion, reducing project construction costs by 66%.

Our approach to grit expansion will take a similar, holistic approach. We understand evaluating performance of the grit system
requires an understanding of the processes upstream and downstream, from screening through the oxidation ditches. We anticipate
opportunities to leverage our design tools to minimize construction costs and maximize benefits.

We bring:

* MOMENTUM: For 30 years, the Jacobs' team has worked collabaratively with the City to develop a sound understanding of
your wastewater system. Our knowledge of your system, processes, and staff means we can hit the ground running, saving
time and money.

* VALUE; Project Manager Josh Koch has assembled a team with proven alternatives evaluation and design execution that have
resulted in maximized value for the City while minimizing construction costs.

+ COMFORT WITH PROJECT TEAM: Most of our team has worked with the City on multiple projects, and we specifically selected
our new tearm members based on the solutions they can bring to this project. Our team cares about the success of this
project for the City.

Mark Johnson (mark.johnsoné@jacabs.com), Geographic Director of Projects, is authorized to sign any agreement that may result
from this proposal. Please contact Josh Kach, our Project Manager, if you have questions or for additional information. You can reach
him at 541.768.3689 or by email at joshua koch@jacobs.com. Josh's mailing address is provided in the letterhead above, and he will
manage the project from our existing Corvallis office location,

Sincerely,
Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc.

@Eua Koch, PE Mark Johnsan, PE k,

Project Manager Geographic Director of Projects

68



1. Project Understanding

Since startup of the Water Reclamation Facility

(WRF) in 1996, the City of McMinnville has provided
exceptional management and operation, maximizing the
community’s investment. Jacobs' presence throughout
the last three decades means we understand the

value of the WRF to the community, and we commit

to partnering with the City to deliver a project that
expands this value.

Project Purpose

Mecminnville's Water Reclamatian Facilities Plan (2009,
CH2M HILL/West Yost) recommended expanding the
WRF in conjunction with reducing collection system
infiltration and inflow (1&0) to address future wastewater : a4
treatment needs, Related to the solids treatment and headwurks processes, the Facilities Plan included the following recommendations, Those
recommendatians that have been included in this Binsolids Storage Tank and Grit System Expansion are shiow below in hoxes,

Construct dewataring process and diy blosolids
storage and upgrade odor control

Esm.f;hsh.‘nn solutions for pnur pI‘DJ'E{T means a tharough understanaing of your focitities.

Facilities Plan Constructa 1-MG biosolids
. : : . el Fyir
siorage tank and mixer [ Expand grit remavalJand madify screens bl
iaposed lpplemeniation Year O3 : '_‘:‘.‘ :——i— — -E- ¥ —{:" = — | ! . {O—»

Constructing a 1-MG biosolids storage tank will provide additional biasolids storage capacity and tank redundancy and eliminate the need ta
decant supernatant, Expanding grit removal will provide increased grit remaval capacity in wet weather flow conditions and provide redundancy
ta the grit removal process. A redunidant grit process will also allow for upgrades to the existing vortex grit remaval unit,

Expertise and Experience with Project Tasks

Our Corvallis Design Center is a world leader in treatment plant design, with decades of experience in all wastewater unit processes, including
completion of all major prejects at the WRF. Some of our propased team members were involved in the original design and construction in the
1290s, and mast of aur team has been part of the last several projects. Simply put, we know your WRF inside and out,

Qur most recent projects a1 the WRF, including developing a dynamic plant model, have provided unigue insights into plant cperations,

Ernie Strahrm and the Jacobs team helped develop the Facility Plan assumptions and conclusions and can provide continuity for an updated
alternatives evaluation. Our familiarity with the WRF means we can hit the ground running.

We have the right experts for the right solution

We suggest beginning with a thorough evaluation and prejection of flows and loads, followed by comparison of unit process options and
corresponding construction estimates for those process options, Pursuing these developrments is supported by the Facilities Plan, which
recommends, "Each of the processes offer advantages in capftal cost, operational cost, or characteristics of the final product. A more detailed
process evaluation should be performed in a Predesign Phase.” With advancements in technology, changes to plant flows and loads, and a
changing regulatory environment, we find the Facilities Plan recommendation for a more detalled process evaluation appropriate today.

If the Project Definition Repart confirms the Facilities Plan recommendation to construct a 1-MG biosolids storage tank and expand grit
removal, our Corvallis design resources will deliver it. Luke Scogqgins, our lead structural enginger, has designed numerous tanks throughout the
Northwest, including these with challenging soil conditions. For example, Luke's implementation of deep sail mixing for the City of Hillsboro Will
Crandall Reservoir and Pumnp Station saved money and prevented neighborhood nolse concerns over a pile foundation construction approach
His experience on the WRF Expansion project, familiarity with the liquefiable sails at the WRF, and understanding of new ASCE requirements
mean that Luke understands the cost and complications associated with ground impravements.
To address grit expansion, we added Bryan Youker, our headworks expert with 29 years of plant design experience including 21 grit removal
improvement designs. He will focus on the specific challenges of the WRF's grit remaval system. Both Luke and Bryan are within one hout
of the WRF sitg.
We have identified several areas that may provide oppartunities for the City to minimize project cost and add value. To gvaluate these aptions, in
addition to Bryan Youker, we have added Brett Reistad, Dave Oerke, and Ernie Strahm to aur team

+ Brett Reistad - 20 Years of design and solids process start-up experience means that our solids treatment expert will be a short drive away

during all design, construction, and commissioning phases.

= Dave Oerke -Led and supported designs for 13 ATAD projects (Exhibit 3), including multiple conversions of first to second generation reactar
tesign; Dave's recommendations will ensure the ATAD pracess remains & valuable asset well into the future,

« Ernie Strahm - Well-respected throughout Gregon for his operations knowledge and his longevity at the WRE including involveme6e®in

2



the original WRF construction, stabilizing aperation of the ATADs, and development of the Facilities Plan, Ernie's involvement infarms our
alternative recommendations with the benefit of 32 years of operations knowledge specific to the WRF,

Our approach is based on past successes

Our approach to the Biosolids Storage Tank and Grit Systern Expansion project will begin with & thorough evaluation of alternatives to confirm
the path forward. The focus of this evaluation will be a recommendation that maximizes value for the City and provides the facilities you need
at a cost that is within your budget. You can depend on our exceptional track record of delivering designs on budget, estimating construction
costs accurately, and minimizing construction change orders as shown in Section 6, Exhibit 11. We will continue to be a committed partner with
the City throughout the process. We will evaluate the existing process end alte/natives to set the project direction early, and deliver a quality,
efficient design for the selected design alternative

Evaluate the existing pracess and alternatives to set project direction early

Your exceptional WRF operations staff, pretreatment group, and existing system improvements have allowed the City to defer implementation of
some of the Facilities Plan recommendations and optimize plans moving forward. Examples include:

* Operations stalf have optimized aeration equipment to maximize secondary treatment capacity, allowing for a redundant oxidation ditch and
extending the capacity of your existing infrastructure,

* The pretreatment group's proactive approach with industrial dischargers has allowed the WRF to limit influent loads and anticipate the
timing of increased loads, so that costly WRF infrastructure upgrades are not driven by a handful of industrial dischargers,

* [&limprovements have dramatically reduced peak flows. For the Tertiary Expansion Project, the & reduction demanstrated that facility
expansion was not necessary, This resulted in Jacobs' recommendation for improvements to the existing filters rather than expansion,
which resulted in a 66% savings of the original cost.

The City's responsible stewardship of the wastewater system has created an opportunity for a holistic evaluation of the solids and
headworks portion of the WRF. \We look forward 1o the oppartunity to share our ideas for how the City can best leverage this value, as
symbalized by the lightbulb icon. .

in preparation for this RFP, we performed a comprehensive review of the Facilities Plan, a preliminary analysis of solids process data and
investigated process alternativas. We identified the following itams as potentially influencing the diraction of the project and prasent critical
kriowledga or developments not available whan the Facilities Plan was developed:

* The soil beneath the WRF site has high potential for seismic liquefaction. Although previously known, recent building code changes are
likely ta significantly impact the construction cost of any new facilities, particularly tanks.

* Reductions in plant influent flow, combined with the ability to take an oxidation ditch offline for cleaning, minimize the need for

grit removal expansion. Because the grit removal system sizing 15 largely driven by flow rate and because peak flows have dropped, the
elsting grit basin size (s adequate for the foreseeable future, Any gnit that carries thraugh the grit basin settles in the exterior channel

of the oxidatlon ditches, While not an ideal location, gritin this area does not negatively impact the process and is inexpensive to

remove periodically.

Plant influent loads have notincreased at the same rate as expected in the Facilities Plan. This has resulted in less-than-expecied solids
processing requirements.

Improvements in solids processing technology provide treatment options not available when the Facilities Plan was developed. This
includes the next generation of ATAD reactor design and the option to canvert existing ATADs to second generation,

Emerging contaminants, specifically polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS), should be considered when evaluating selids management for
long-term sustainability. Class A Exceptional Quality (EQ) binsalids requirements are focused

primarily on pathiogen and vector attraction reduction as well as the cancentration of metal Exhibit 1. Jacobs hos experfence with CFO

contaminants; hewaver, future regulatory requirements and public perception could influence heacworks modeling, which often results

tachnology selection in simple, cost-effective impravements
thut enhance performance

» Costs for hauling, fuel, technologies, and site work have changed considerably since 2009,
These factors were critical in calculating life cycle costs in the Facilities Plan, therefore changes
in the last 10 years may affect the outcome of the analysis,

Headworks Improvements

We have reviewed the arit removal process with Bryan Youler, Ernie Strahm, and Steve Revnaolds

to identify the construction issues, operations history, and recommendations for upgrade and
expansion. Because grit basin sizing is largely driven by hydraulics and plant flows were expected
to increase, the Facilities Plan recommended expansion of grit removal in 2017, Instead, plant
flaws have stabilized since implementing I&l improvements, minimizing the need for increased grit
removal capacity. Additionally, expansion of the secondary process in 2015 demnonstrates grit can
be inexpensively removed (although somewhat labor intensively) from an offline oxidation ditch an
an infrequent basis. Although expanding the grit remaval process increases capacity and provides
redundancy, a refreshed evaluation of facility needs i prudent to avoid stranded investments

The WRF issues related to grit performance are complex and not isolated 1o the grit basin [tself
We recammend the City consider a comprehensive evaluation of screening and headwarks

3

-

rtex G




performance, rather than addressing screening issues in a future standalone praject. The Facilities Plan recommended medification of the
screens in 2017 WRF operations staff are aware that the screens are becoming a weak [ink in the headworks process, and grit depositian in the
screening channets should be considered when evaluating the grit expansion project,

% We suggest the Ciry consides @ thoronglh evaluatlon of the existing screening and ool mmoval processes to ldent [Ty tgeted
) gpportunines lor eronoimical Lpgranes lacohe leads the Industry in computational Huld I1H|I.I|||Il [CFIN n.';."--”ﬁ.,l and tha WHF
-—

= oxisting screening and grit removal process ke an jdeal application that could result In simplo, cost-pffective recommendagions Hk
bafting to improve performance of the existing system
Biosolids Storage Tank

The Facilities Plan recommended addiing a 1-MG biosolids storage tankin 2071z, EXoit 2. ATAD Capacity

Ihis work has not yet been implemented, and while the current tank s at
capacity, there are opportunities to optimize the existing process 1o defer or
even eliminate construction of the new tank. L. _Max Mon thMADCapant:,'
Each year in late winter through spring, when the existing biosclids storage

tank is full, approximately 1,500 pounds per day of solids in the decant flow is
recirculated around the plant, substantially reducing the ATAD capacity. The
ATAD capacity is so limited during these seasons, that solids retention time
(SRT) and volatile solids reduction (VSR) suffer, resulting in increased solids 1o
the existing biosolids storage tank.

if the zalids ioad in the decant can be reduced, the quantity of sollds
to the ATAD would be reduced providing the ability (o operate at

= |nnger SR, increasmg the VSR, reducing the quantity of biesolids

= hax Month ATAD ' No Decant
Tg:ﬂi"g u'dua“ sollds Recyele

Fu}mdf per day

hechan & Conshrrtinng

2009 24 2019 2024 2028

produced, thus reducing the required bipsotids storane guantity

The reduction could be great enough to eliminate the need for expanded biosolids storage, which could be accomplished with an existing
offling gravity belt thickener or with a standalone, packaged plate-settler unit. Each would require some operational changes and compromises
but could resultin a substantial cost savings to the City. The change is also likely to result in improved ATAD performance and expanded ATAD
capacity, as a portion of ATAD volume would no longer be dedicated to retreating recirculated solids from decant,

ATADs Exhibit 3. Dovid Oerke Quick Facts
When the 2009 Facllities Plan was developed, the City was just becoming comfortable with ATAD process David Oerke

operation, which had exhibited inconsistent performance for the first 10 years and was a major factor in the has been involved In more than
Facilities Plan recommendation to avoid expansion of the ATAD process. 15 ATAD projects

Since completion of the Facilities Plan, a secend generation of ATAD reactor design has arrived in the including:

marketplace The second generation has had many successful installations that have resulted in a system @ Studies

that operates al lower temperatures, higher VSR, and reduced adors. Second generation featuras are ° ,

available for new construction and can be retrafitted into first-genaration ATAD systems. Dave Oerke will Designs

assist the City in determining if an ATAD process retrofit or expansion is beneficial Construction sequencing Ind Generation ATADs

and timing of ATAD retrofit are impartant considerations and would likely occur in summer when cne reactor
can be offtine Our team’s knowledge of plant operations and experience with construction sequencing are 9 15t Generation ATADs
key in identifying opportunities for retrofit activities. o Retrofits

Ihe savings realized by implementing decam mgrovements ano eliminating the biosolids storage expansion could be furthed
leveraged by canverting one of the ATAD reactors from first to second generation design and Improving VSR, dewaterablility, and
= gdors dmproved V5R further reduces the required Blosollds storaye valume

Dewatering

Cancurrent with construction of a 1-MG hiasalids storage tank, the Facilities Plan recommended constructing a dewatering process to initially
manage digested sludge that exceeded the capacity of liquid binsolids storage and eventually manage the ¥ 2
thickaned sludge that was expected to exceed the ATAD capacity. (Thermal drying after dewatering of thickened O A5 part at this

sludge was propased to achieve Class A treatment) Adding 3 parallel dewatering process would also diversify the :;'”J'?IT - ;:T ";'”“””
- — e NG J

solids product that exits the WRFE If land application of liguid hinsolids is no longer viahle, this diversity of solide * daaaied
products would ensure the WRF could still dispose of solids. AT shai for thn
With the combination of lower-than-anticipated plant loads and suggested improvements to the decant stream, dewatering process
the existing solids process may be capable of managing the sclids load through the planning peried. If this is addition, even il
confirmed in the Project Definition Phase, the following would still be prudent to consider as @ more immediate Implementation
trigger for the dewatering process planning: deferred. Brett Relstad's
= The concern over liquid biosolids viability f:::‘.'|"m:|',':_ ,"I:',:I-'_’.:l";'r:']..
= The need to diversity product designing Facilisdes cam be
« The desire to make an early investment in a longer planning period where dewstering would be needed, spplied to develop a plan
10 years or more in the future you can depend @l



Emerging Contaminants Including PFAS

Emerging contaminants, including PFAS, have received increased attention in recent years. We have added Scott Greico, our national subject
matter expert, to navigate this area. As we learned with you at the recent Association of Clean Water Agencies (ACWA) Biosolids Committee
Meeting, preliminary recommendatians related to PFAS include developing a public communications plan and sampling. Scott will work with the
City to sotidify its communication and sampling plans early in the design. Once alternatives evaluation begins, Scott will work with Josh and Brett
to ensure PFAS is considered in aur evaluation,

We will deliver a quality, efficient design for the selected design alternative

Jacobs' Five-Phase Design Process ensures significant decisions are made early, before time and budaget are spent fine-tuning the details. Exhibit
4 shows this approach. For this project, our existing dynamic process model development and site knowledae will result in early evaluation of
alternatives, project scope definition and direction in the design process.

Key Project Milestones

Jacobs' extensive history working at the WRF means we understand plant operations, construction . i
impacts, and sequencing required to result in the lowest construction cost for the City Depending O ki oy
on the project ultimately selected by the City, the following milestones shown n Exhibit 5 may be = I::]H:\: ﬂ'm'['“” : 'I'_’_;"L'r'-]"_1:.';{;”
incorporated jnta the project schedule. Each of these items represents a construction sequencing L .Is.uml-.lrl- - ,,',':'h..i and
constraint that influences development of construction milestones. Qur design schedule will be adjusted tval brings o Contractor it
accordingly to accommodate a bid advertisement and construction window that simplifies the project, thus at the right th
minimizing cost and cemplications for the City.

Exhibit &. Jacobs' FHve-Phase Design Process

Pro
‘Definition N

Cantract Bid
Documents Documents

Schematic

Design
Design

Development 1%

Exhibit 5. Key Milestones and Consequences of Missing

ImporeaneM lgstone Definltion/ALtivity l:_uﬁsf_qwri:eufwssing.

Schedule Liquids Work affecting the WRF liquids process should be performed in Inwinter and the ‘shoulder” months, wet
process work for sunmer when flows are lowest. Although full plant shutdowns weather flow rates mean that temporary
dry weather flows should be avoided, experience has shown that summer nights provisions, including pumping, are more
in the summer, present the best opportunity for & plant shutdown, Upgrades costly. Wet weather flows also eliminate
to the existing grit system could require a shutdown of the opportunity to take units offline or use
temparary pumping. offline basins for equalization, resulting in less
— : e e | flexibility and increased cost.
ATAD reactors Summer is the only window to take a reactar offline because Because all three ATADs must be anline in
can only be taken the three ATAD reactors must be onlinein the fall, winter, and winter, if wark is not completad in summer,
offline in summer, spring, If conversion of existing ATAD reactors fram first to second | remaining work must be deferred to the
generation is recommended in the Preject Definition Phase, following summer, resulting in longer

conversions must be carefully sequenced to complete all threein | construction schedule and increased costs,
ane summer, ar the work must take place aver multiple summers.

Schedule decant Decant is performed from late December through April each year, | Attempting decant improvements in wet
process modifications | so improvements to the decant process likely must be implemented | weather means construction activities occur
in summer and as in summer, We believe that improvements to decant will have while decanting is active, complicating
soon as practical. positive impacts on ATAD operation and biosolids storage capacity, | construction and adding cost. Delaying

so we recommend implementation quickly. improvements risks exceeding ATAD capacity,

creates a requlatory risk, and further stresses
the existing biosolids storage tank

Excavation and Soils excavation and foundation preparation should occur during | major excavation or soil improvements are
foundation dry weather. While this is typically the case in the Willamette Valley, | required, some of this work may be impassible
preparation our experience on the Tertiary Expansion Project indicates the soil | inwet weather, Mot completing this during

in dry weather. at the WRF is particularly challenging, the dry weather window could mean delaying

work 9 to 12 months to the fallowing summer,
Increasing costs,

72



Key Deliverables
key deliverables required by the project are as shown in Exhibit 6.

Exhibit 6. Key Deliverabies by Phase

B Schematic Design M Conftract A Bid
S  Desion Deuﬂlupment Documents @ Documents N

* Update Geatechnical Report * Schematic Design ~~ » Detailed drawings ~ + Detailed drawings  + Bid-ready

« Sampling and update SUMO model ~ Reportincluding facility  and design details and design details ~  drawinas, details,

« Document flows, loads, and narratives and process  + Major equipment  + Full draft and specifications
buildout criteria control narratives specifications specifications « Stamped

+ Fvaluate alternatives * Schematic drawings, * Divisions 0/1 » Construction structural

+ Projéct Definition Reportincluding.  3c-dnediagrams, and  speciications sequence calculations
documentation of alternatives, bHls » Costestimateand ~ + Costestimateand ~ * Final Engineer's
design criteria, cost, and schedule " Cost estimate and schedule schedule estimate

schedule

Familiarity with the City and WRF Processes

Our team has completed numerous, major projects for the City of McMinnville's wastewater system and the WRF for nearly 30 years. While we
work on projects all over the world each day, the long history of projects with you demonstrates our commitment to delivering cansistent, high-
quality work here at home. As proof of our familiarity with the City erganization, staff, and the WRF, Exhibit 7 shows the numerous projects we
have worked on together and our team member invalverment during the last thiee decades,

Exhibit 7. Timeline of our successful .t Dynamic Mo delinglaur:;
worle with the City of McMinnville i i
yof Oxidation Ditch Improvements Incustrial Loading Analysis
010 20182019
Odor Assessment Tertiary Clarifiers and
ATAD 3 Coatings
199 WRF Faclity Pl ane C MasterPlar Udats s
Wet Weather Dverflow B e bl o Collection System Modeling |
Management Plan 5
2005-2010 | 0172019
1993-1996 : .
Water Reclamation Facilty industrial Pretreatment Pragram WRF Te;t;glr i‘g{ﬁ?ércntg ;lj.
Design and We Weather ' sia
Management Program 2006 26
TMDL Assistance ATAD 2 Coating
199 o 2004 2012:2016
Wastewater McMinnville NPDES WRF Expansion
Rate Study Permit Support | -
——t—— ; —t+—A— OO+t
Mark Johnson, Ernie Strahm, = Mark Jahnson, Ernie Strahm, o Josh [och Bill Leaf, Luke Scoggins, Mark Johnson,
Craig Rawie, Bryan Youker S Scott Cowden, Craig Rawle é Craig Massie Ernie Strahm, Geoff Kirsten, Sam

Chandler, Nate Ebbs, Ryan Harbert, Jerry Nordal,
Craig Rawie Steve Reynolds, Tom Jones, Todd Cotten

2. Qualifications and Experience
History of Jacobs

Jacobs has a distinguished history of providing Gregon municipal water and wastewater clients with engineering design and construction
services for 72 years. Founded just 46 miles down Hwy 99 from McMinnville, our Corvallis office currently serves clients throughout Oregon, the
Marthwest, and the world. We are ranked the 2019 Number 1 Design Firm by Engineering News-Record

Jacobs [sa project-centric organization focused on sustained client loyalty, our staff have a proven track record of dellvering to your standards
far nearly three decades, Today, our more than 52 000 employees around the world provide a broad range of technical services to our industrial,
commercial, and government clients in multiple Industries.

Our global network includes more than 230 offices in North America, South America, Europe, the Middle East, India, Australia, Africa, and Asia.
With 2018 revenues of $15 billion, we affer full-spectrum services including scientific and specialty consulting, all aspects of engineering design
and censtruction, architecture, project/program and construction management, and operations and maintenance. 73

6



Jacobs' Types of Work and Capabilities

* Industry-leading, nationally-recognized solids treatment experts
1..|1I1 dozens of mmpiﬂturj projects in the areas of;
ATAD design and analysis, including conversion of original
ATAD process to Generation 2 ATAD
» Thickening and dewatering processes
» Composting system design and implementation
Lime stabilization
« Drying
» Odor control
« Expertise in emerging contaminants, including PFAS

* Analysis of grit removal process alternatives, including greenfield,

expansion, and retrafit

Relevant Experience in the Last 10 Years

+ Dynamic process modeling capabilities, including an existing

model of the McMinnville WRE

« Structural experts in tank design, experienced with tanks on

challenging Northwest soil conditions

Instrumentation and control planning, design, and recent
experience performing full programmable logic controller (PLC)
replacement on multiple projectsinthe Northwest

* Construction management, inspaction, and operations
+ Condition assessment and rehabilitation services
* Environmental documentation.and permitting

Exhibit 8 shows a selection of project exparience within the last 10 years with similarities 1o the type of work outlined in this RFP

Exhibit 8. Our experience with projects with similar
scope will inform and benefit the City of McMinnville

Your Jacobs Team's Recent Project Experience
McMinnville WRF Expansion Project

McMinnville WRF Tertiary Treatment and
Disinfection Project

TEAM SYNERGY

E Key Team Members

Mark Johnson, Josh Koch, Luke Scoggins, Ryan Harbert,
Bill Leaf, Steve Reynolds, Geaffrey Kirstan, MNate Ebbs, Tom
Jones, Craig Rawie, Ernie Strahm, Tadd Cotten

Mark Johrson, Josh Koch, Luke Scoggins, Steve Reynolds,
Ryan Harberl, Geoffrey Kirsten, Sam Chandler, Tom Jones,
Bill Leal, Craig Rawie, Jerry Nordal

L%

HEADWORKS

Oak Lodge Sanitary District WRF, Oak Grove, OR

Waianae WWTP Improvemants and Upgrade, Honaluluy, HI |
{Construction in Progress)

Mate Ebbs, Tom Jones, Bryan Youker

Josh Koch, Scott Cowden, Bryan Youker, Ryan Harbert,
Geoffrey Kirsten, Mate Ebbs, Tom Janes

Clackamas Tri-City WRRF Solids Handling Improverments,

TREATMENT

SOLIDS TRE

Ben Herman, Scott Cowden, Brett Reistad, Ryan Harbert,

Improvements and Soil Stabilization Study, Preliminary
and Final Design, CO

OR (Construction in Progress) Josh Koch, Geoffrey Kirsten, Mark Johnsan, Nate Ebbs,
 Dave Oerke, Tom Jones, Bill Leaf, Todd Cotten

Upper Occaquan Service Autharity Residuals Jash Koch, Brett Reistad, Ryan Harbert, Sam Chandler,

Replacement and Upgrades to Building D2, VA Dave Oarka

(Canstruction in Progress)

Cagle River Water and Sanitation District CEPC Design/ Dave Qerke

Construction, Avan WWTP and Edwards WWTP

Design, CO

Conversion of First to Second Generation Facilities, Grand Dave Oerke

Lhu te Me nasha West 5ewerage Commission WWTP Wi

South FDF[ [ﬂlhrrs Sanitation Distrnict WRF SDUds Handlmq Dave Oerke

City of Hillsbore Will Crandall 10-MG Reservoir & Pump
Station, OR

lackamas Tri-City WRRF Sclids Handling Impravements
1.3-MG, OR (Construction in Progress)

City of Vancouver WS1, Phase 2, WA

Project Descriptions

Luke Scoggins, Geoffrey Kirsten, Todd Cotten

Ben Herman, Scott Cowden, Brett Reistad, Ryan Harbert,
Josh Kach, Geoffrey Kirsten, Mark Johnson, Nate Ebbs,
Dave Oerke, Tom Janes, Bitl Leaf, Todd Cotten

Luke Scoggins, Geoffrey Kirsten, Todd Cotten

The projects profiled beginning on the next page are examples of where our team has delivered work that is directly related to the work expected
in the current project. The project descriptions demonstrate the gualifications, specialized experience, and technical competence of the staff

W are proposing,



Tertiary Treatment and Disinfection Project, City of McMinnville, OR

UV retrofit with challenging construction sequencing,

PROJECT DETAILS

The Tertiary Treatment and Disinfection project was originally advertised as
expansion of the tertiary filter facility and replacement of the UV system
Jacobs' preliminary design evaluation recommended upgrade of the existing
filters, instead of expansion, saving the City 66%. The UV system was replaced
as anticipated, however, we used a pre-selection process and pre-negatiation
for UV equipment, so it arrived on site before the dry weather window,
Detailed design of the UV replacement included navigating complicated
construction sequencing limitations based on maintaining existing

system operations,

+ Replaced existing Trojan UV3000 with Trojan UV3000+ without
interruptions to plant operation

Scope: Tertiary filter upgrade and UV retrofit design | Type of |+ Implemented back-up PAA system,
facility: WRF | Completed: 2019 | Size; $19 million | Setting: |+ Alternatives evaluation identified filter facility upgrade,
Existing WRF adjacent to light industrial and farmiand instead of expansian.

KEY PERSONNEL DIRECTLY INVOLVED Josh Koch, Luke Scoggins, Ryan Harbert, Geoffrey Kirsten, Sam Chandler, Tom Jonies, Bill Leaf, Craig
Rawle, Jerry Nordal, Steve Reynolds | OWNER REFERENCE City of McMinnville, Larry Sherwood, 503.434.7312

Secondary Expansian, City of McMinnvitle, OR

Aword-winning expension praject.
PROJECT DETAILS

Scope: Secondary expansion design | Type of
facility: WEF | Completed: 2016 | Size: $10.4
million | Setting: Existing WRF adjacent ta light
industrial and farmland

Our team designed a third secondary treatment train (o increase secondary capacity

to 32 MGD, The project included a new Orbal oxidation ditch, secondary clarifier,

RAS pumping station, mixed liquor split box and assodiated large-diameter influent,

mixed liquor, and secondary effluent piping. We evaluated headworks tie-in options

tu balance cost and flexibility with minimal process interruption, Optimized aerator

desion for energy efficiency and process performance. Designed mixed liguor and RAS

piping tu provide maximum flexibility for combinations of online basins. Developed

detailed construction seguence to accommodate complicated tie-ins during existing

facility operation

+ Dptimized oxidation ditch aeratar layout to gain an additional 10% aeration capacity

+ Developed piping and pump approach that allows any combination of oxidatian
ditches o be used with any secondary clarifiers.

+ Recajved the 2014 Pacific Northwest Clean Water Association — Lower Columbia
Section 'Project of Year Award.”

KEY PERSONNEL DIRECTLY INVOLVED Josh Koch, Luke Scoggins, Ryan Harbert, Bill Leaf, Geoffrey Kirsten, Nate Ebhs, Tom Jones, Craig Rawie,
Steve Raynalds | OWNER REFERENCE City of McMinnwille, Leland Koester, 503434 7313

City of Hillsboro Will Crandall Reservoir & Pump Station, OR

The soils at the reservoir site are highly
susceptible to seismic-induced liguification and
required extansive deap soil mixing technigues to
build a seismically-resitient facility

PROJECT DETAILS

Scope: Resarvair and Pump Station Design |
Type of Facility: Finished water storage and
delivery | Completed; 2014 | Size: $25 million
| Setting: Residential with liquefiable soils

Jacobs has an extensive history designing concrete water-holding structures in high-seismic
locations, including in the Pacific Northwest. The Will Crandall Resarvoir and Pump Station
project included challenges that were resolved through innavative engineering and team
collaboration. Soils at the Crandall Reservair site and the Evergreen Reservoir site were
determined to be highly susceptible to selsmically-induced liquefaction. At Crandall, the
liquefaction depths went to about 80 feet. Jacobs designed cement deep soil mixing (COSM)
ground improvements for the Crandall Reservoir and Pump Statien, which consisted of a
10-MG storage tank, 20-mgd pump station, T2kW hydroelectric generator, and an BOOkW
backup diesel generator.

Over 1,000 COSM panels, each 7-feet long and 3-feet wide, down to 80 feet below ground,

wera installed below the storage tank, pump station, and interconnecting pipelines betwaen

the tank and pump station, Created a seismically-resilient facility, protecting against the

Maximum Credible Earthquale: during an earthquake, facilities will remain intact, hold water,

and operate after the event.

* Soils were determined to be highly susceptible to seismically-induced liquefaction, similar
to the soils at the McMinnville WRF

+ CDSM ground improvements implemented to protect against the design seismic event,

KEY PERSONNEL DIRECTLY INVOLVED Luke Scoggins, Geoffrey Kirsten, Todd Cotten | OWNER REFERENCE City of Hillsboro, Jamie Davis, Lead

Operator, 503,347.2138

75



(ak Lodge Sanitary District WRF Oak Grove, OR

Mew headworks with influent screens and
grit removol.

PROJECT DETAILS

Scope: Design of complete WRF
replacement | Type of facility: WRF,
including headworks | Completed: 2012 |
Size: $58.9 million | Setting: Residential,
adjacent to Willamette River, high
seisrmicity, bigh flood waters, irregular
subrsurface conditions

The Oak Lodge WRF s a conventional, activatad sludge plant with an averaga dry weather

capacity of 4 mgd and a peak design capacity of 20 mgd serving a population of approximately

40,000. The bulk of the treatment components ware 40 to 50 years old and deteriarated, The

upgrade and replacement of facilities protects the Willamette River by going beyond current

regulatory requirements to provide high-quality, reclaimed water and reduce sanitary sewer

overflows. The design documents accommadated phased construction,

The project included a new influem pump station, headworks, seration basins, secondary

clarifiers, UV disinfection, interchange reactors, digesters, plant water (3W) system, and vehicle

storage. Designed for straightforward expansion, including the adding tertiary facilities to provide

reuse water in the future

+ Bryan Youker performed early evaluation of headworks alternatives, including evaluation of grit
remaval technologies,

+ & reduction strategies minimize collection system improvements.

« Yard piping and buried valves allow for construction of future tertiary filtration with minimat
impact to plant aperations.

+ Innovative technical solutions that meet water quality goals and community values.

+ Specific emphasis on aligning capital spending with cash flow and financing constraints
through implementation of improvements,

KEY PERSONNEL DIRECTLY INVOLVED Nate Ebbis, Tom Jones, Bryan Youker | OWNER REFERENCE Water Dude Solutions, Mark Walter,
Operations Manager, 971.413.4126 (previously with Oak Lodge Sanitary District)

South Fort Collins Sanitation District (SFCSD) WRF, Solids Handling Alternative Evaluation Study, Preliminary Design Report, and Final

Design and Construction (50% Carnplf;te}l for Phase | Expansion & Improvements, CO

Construction of ATAD retrafit.
PROJECT DETAILS
Scope: Solids handling evaluation and design | « Excellent jet aeration mixing to maintain aerabic conditions and two-stage (wet scrubber and

| Type of facility: ATAD | Year completed:
2017 - current | Size: $35.3 million |
Setting: Existing WRF

“The wastewater treatment and solids
processing experience and professionalism
demonstrated by Dave Oerke ... and the
team identified clear, sensible direction and
budgetary breakdown for our expansion ond
improvements. We are pleased to be working
with them on the final Design Phase of the
project”

- Chiris Matkins, General Manager, 5FCS0

Performed a detailed evaluation of aerobic and anaerabic digestion and “second generation’
ATAD as the solids digestion alternatives and detailed cost-benefit analysis. Net present value

| cost for “second generation” Class *A° ATAD facilities was 15% lawer than Class "B” anaerobic
digestion and 17% lower than Class "8" aerobic digestion facilities. More advantages of the
Class "A" ATAD process;

+ High volatile solids reduction (55-65%), overall biosolids volume reduction and
improved dewaterability

+ Mayimized use of six existing aerobic digesters and two existing aerated
sludge storage tanks

+ Smallest, most compact footprint that was campatible with existing facilities

biofilter} ador treatment resulting in minimal odar generation
» Positive input from Colorado ATAD operators; enhanced SCADA control,

accessible maintenance
|+ Minimal sidestreamimpact with MesoAer tank treatment (100 to 300 mg/L ammonia at
| other WWTFs) critical to minimize the size of liquid treatment facilities
+ Produce Class "A” low-odor biosalids with more flexible biosolids reuse outlets, including

land application and future product distribution and marketing

District WRF staff were more comfortable moving forward with the installation of ATAD
facilities after extensive research on the ATAD process and other ATAD facilities including first-
hand operator infarmation from tours of multiple installations Edwards WWTF; St Virain WWTF,
and Fruita WWTF. Jacobs contacted 10 ather ATAD facilities including four that converted
existing tankage and have been operating fram 7-15 years and received positive responses on
training, service, and follow-up from vendor staff, and overal| perfarmance

KEY PERSONMEL DIRECTLY INVOLVED Dave Oarke | OWNER REFERENCE SFCSD, Chris Matkins, PE, General Manager, 970.226,3104, ext, 101

76



Tri-City WRRF Solids Handlm Imprm'ements Clackamas County, OR

One year after this design praject started, the County approached Jacobs to take over
this project from the originally awarded design team. We worked with the owner to utilize
information developed by the prior team to narrow down equipment types and digester
expansion capacity, but otherwise started from scratch

Scope of work included the addition of 1.3-MG Digester 3, feed tanks, feed system,
dewatering feed tanks and building; digester gas storage; and replacement far existing
cogeneration engine, centrate management, ador control, digester mixing, gas handling,
heating water, and electrical power feed systerns,

+ Jacobs delivered the entire design in approximately 12 menths.

Digester addition on constrained site.

PROJECT DETAILS « Complex retrofit in a small space in the middle of an operating plant. Secant piles were
Scope: Design of expansien and retrofit Uf_ required to accommodate deep excavations adjacent ta an operating facility. Scheduling
existing digestion and solids handling facility | was critical to ensure major excavation was not compromized during wet weather season

Type of facility: Addiuonal digester, feed tanks due 1o adjacent river levels,
and systemn | Completed: Anticipated early Brett Relstad and Ben Herman developed a facility layout that accommodated all desired

-

2021 | Size: £33.5 million | Setting: Urban functions withou!l extending beyond the existing plant boundaries.

industrial area, adjacent to Clackamas River, + Solids experts developed a digester design allowing operations to take full acvantage
high sesmicity, high flood waters, irreqular of the capacity of beth existing digesters; addition of the 4th digester postponed for
subsurface conditions roughly 20 years,

KEY PERSONNEL DIRECTLY INVOLVED Ben Herman, Scott Cowden, Breft Reistad, Ryan Harbert, Josh Kach, Geaffrey Kirsten, Mark Johnson,
Nate Ebbs, Dave Oerke, Tom Jones, Bill Leaf | OWNER REFERENCE Clackamas County WES, Lynne Chicaine, 5039532587 mobile

Distinquishing Qualifications

Our 3D modeling and design automation tools enhance Our modeling approach relies on full
feedback and ﬂESigﬂ integration of City and Jacobs resources.

Just as we prepared the McMinnville WRF Expansion design using 30 CAD tools, we propose a

simitar approach for this preject. The investments we've made in equipment libraries, conceptual

layout tools, and Integration of equipment and instrument lists into our technical specifications Jacobs MG
and startup documentation provide additional value and efficiencies that differentiate us from Rill Leaf Lore  SESEINDESI

our competitors. We provide 30 PDF files that allow WRF staff to easily view and understand
new facilities and provide timely design feedback, resulting in improved maintenance access,
safety features, and design refinements.

Modeling S Muitt

Team |

We already developed the WRF dynamic model

Our modeling approach includes integrating dynamic modeling benetits through the project
lifecycle - from planning and design through startup and operation Because all validation and
madeling for the WRF are already complete we propose leveraging the investment the City
already made with Jacobs to develop a SUMO model, Bill Leaf will continue working with you to
refine this model to capitalize on the combined knowledge of the City and Jacabs. Effectively
executing modeling tasks with this team and thoroughly documenting the results, are key 1o
taking full advantage of our combined knowledge.

Our Corvallis Design Center brings innovation and consistency

Dur Carvallis Design Center differentiates Jacobs from our competitors, in that your entire project is designed within an hour's drive from the
WREF. Your project will be designed by engineers and technicians who have experience on your project as well as some of the most complex and
challenging prajects in our global portfolio. Our project quality assurance team is in Corvallis with increased access ta, and interaction with,

the lead design engineers. We have trusted the same team working on your project with Jacobs' highest-profile design-bulld projects, with our
money at risk. This canfidence in our capability translates to cost-effective, efficient delivery for your project.

Construction sequencing is critical to project success

Careful attention to construction sequencing and phasing is often overlooked by our competitars. As our team experienced on the WRF
Expansion Project and Tertiary Treatment and Disinfection Project, construction sequencing is vital for a successful project. During the Design
Phase, Josh developed a detailed construction sequence that was reviewed with WRF staff and the design team. Throughout the construction
projects, bath contractars referred to this sequence for quidance. For this project, once a treatment pracess is selected and layout established,
Josh will develap a construction sequence that provides the City with confidence the project is constructible in the contract time allotted

with an acceptable risk profile, like the last two projects at the WRF.
77



3. Project Staffing
Staffing Plan

We plan to staff our team according to the organizational chart, structure and respansibilities shown in Exhibit .

Qualifications of Team

Qur core design team, which has delivered the last two prajects for
the City, knows the WRF inside and out, Understanding how to daliver
the McMinnwille WRF design differentiates us from other teams.

Our knowledae extends beyond the WRF infrastructure itself. We
know the WRF staff's technical preferences, operating procedures,
and day-to-day responsibilities, Not only do we understand the
techinical preferences of the WRF staff, we know who to contact for
additional input

We have augmented our core team with
hand-picked experts

For this project, we have augmented our core team with individuals
with expertise related to the specific project scope. Bryan Youker's
headworks design experience, Brett Reistad's depth and breadth

of salids treatment knowledge, Dave Derke's ATAD experience, and
Ben Herman's experience as a structural engineer and solids project
design manager add value to an already solid team. Paul Hicks brings
Hyears pxperience permitting large, industrial projects in Oregon,
and Craig Massie brings a relationship with McMinnville Water & Light
(MWEL), many years of project management experience in Oregon,
and has served as OC Manager on numerous projects in Oregan

We are there when you need us

Our design leads are Oregon-based with all key design staff located

in Carvallis and Portland. We will continue to wark cost effectively,
communicate clearly, and respond to your needs in a tmely manner,
Our door is always apen and we encaurage City staff and stakeholders
10 join us at our Corvallis office. External cammunication is always an
important aspect af successful project implementation

Team Structure Benefits

Our tearm structure ensures our team members that are the best fit
for the task are in the driver's seat at all times, and all team members
are accessible when neaded As Project Manager, lnsh is the main
point of contact with the City and will aversee all work by our team,
aroviding the City streamilined communication with the design

team for the project duration. The experts selected for the Project
Definition Phase are experienced in developing high-level decisions
toset the project direction early. As needed, the engineering

Exhibit 9. Team Organization Chart

_Lll'l'jl Sherwood
y o MeMimnvi (e

Leland Koester
Mike Runge
Tim Munro Mark Johnson, PE
Principal-in-Charge

Josh Koch, PE - Craig Massie, PE

Project J'ullanager Quality Control Manager
Solids Technologist — Seniar Operations Consullant
Brett Reistad, PE  Emnie Strahm
P*racess Madeling Headworks Technologist
Bill Leaf, PE Bryan Youker, PE
ATAD Technalogist PFAS, Emerging Contaminants

Dave Oerke, PE and Regulatory Drivers
Scott Grieco, PhD, PE
-~ Lantinuous Communication -

{ 3

DESIGN PHASE - KEY DISIPLINE LEADS EROJECT DEFINITION PHASE

Design Manager Electrical
Ben Herman, PE, SE Ryan Harbert,
Architecture PE, LEED AP
Geoff Kirsten, Odor Control
RA, NCARB, LEED AP Scott Cowden, PE
Civil Land Use/Permitting
Sam Chandler, PE Paul Hicks °
Mechanical 1&C
Nate Ebbs, PE Jerry Nordal, PE
Structural Craig Rawie, PE'
Luke Scoggins, PE, SE  Geotechnical
Cost Fstimator Todd Cotten, PE
Tom Jones

1\ )j

~s Continpaiis Communication —

Construction Manager
Steve Reynolds

2

z
S
&
g

Baleg, Tetiotcall

discipline leads identified far the Design Phase will support development of the Project Definition Report. Once the project direction is set and
the Design Phase begins, Design Manager Ben Herman, will guide our discipline leads to a quality design delivery. The Project Definition Phase
experts will remain involved, providing review of major concepts to ensure project goals are met, Once design is complete and censtruction
begins, our construction manager, Steve Reynolds, will rely on the design team to ensure the dasign intent is met.

LA

78



Meet Your Team

Joshua Koch, PE, an experienced and committed project manager

* Proven Project Manager, Design Manager, and Project Engineer with the City
and other clients, Jash's internal experience managing Jacobs design teams '~ﬁl!h'RF' fm ,l'auwwarn
and external experience working with clients means he can leverage his in- have had ihe oppor tunity to
depth knowledge of Jacobs design capabilities to deliver projects that meet his  EET R 50 ¢logely
clients’ goals and exceed their expectations, including recent work at the WRF. SRR Syears. |

» Connection to the City. Jash has heen working on projects far McMinnville forel #wmmg;
Water and Light and the City for aver 10 years, particularly during ‘to continiee the fegocy of
r construrction phases, and spends so much time in "MAC” that he considers it W‘M#ﬂlfﬁmﬂﬂm

: his sec;fm.l:l office | by the City ant! Jucobs.”
-+ Commitment from start to finish, Josh understands the impertance of engaging experts carly to set ' - K Kach

the project direction, and the importance of fallowing the project through design and construction, e e
identifying solutions and working through complex challenges, dncalss Profect Mahager

“We all have really appreciated your professional and personal drive, your attention to every detail, your leadership and your listening to
everyone's input, These words are echoed by all that you have worked with here in the City. You are surraunded with good people and it
is very apparent that your team members trust your judgment and are encouraged and motivated by your leadership, Thank you for all
your hard work, Josh, It has meant more to me then you know or that | can express adequotely”

- Dave Gehring, City of McMinnville Plant Manager (Retired)

Team Member Information Relevant Project Experience

RESPONSIBILITIES: As the Project Manager, * Project Manager, McMinnville WRF Tertiary Treatment and Disinfection Project
Josh will direct the technical activities, * Project Manager, McMinnville WRF ATAD Coating Projects

manage schedule and budger, and be a * Project Manager, McMinnville WRF Secondary Expansion Project

single, accountable point of contact far * Resident Engineer, McMinnville WRF Oxidation Ditch improvements

successful delivery. + Design Manager, Residuals Renovations and Improvements to Thickening, UOSA,
AVAILABILITY: 40% Centreville, VA

AVAILABILITY TO TRAVEL TO SITE: 100% + Project Manager, Durham 582 Hydraullc Improvements, Clean Water Services, Durham, OR
: ’ » Quality Manager, Tri-City WRRF Solids Handling Impravements, Clackamas County Water
TIME COMMITMENT: 40% Environment Services (WES)

LENGTH AT JACOBS: 14 years + Resident Engineer, Scott WTP Upgrade and Expansion, MW&L
OFFICE: Corvallis, OR

CURRENT ASSIGNMENTS: Dallas WWWTP Recycled Water Project Design, Sunnyvale Secondary Treatment Design

Our key personnel bring exceptional insight and skill

The following key personnel will be instrumental throughout the project, leading key phases and tasks. Most key personnel are located withinan
hour from the City. Those located outside Oregan, are available as needed, 3 short flight to Portland. Information regarding our experience with,
and knowledge of, the City organization, staff, and the WRF processes is shown Exhibit 7, Full resumes can be found in the Appendix,

Key Team Member Information Qualifications and Specific Knowledge

Mark Johnson, PE, Principal-In-Charge
AVAILABILITY: 15% Responsibilities: As Principal-in-Charge, will hold the Jacobs team accountable on quality,
TIME COMMITMENT: 5% schedule, and budget goals

LENGTH AT + 37 years of specialized experience in the analysis and management of sanitary and
JACOBS: 34 years starmwater collection systems, many in collaboration with treatment analyses and as part of
facility planning.

OFFICE: Portland, OR + Utility system master planning experience includes hydraulic modeling, condition assessment,

cost effectiveness analysis, and improvement planning.

+ Specializes in alternatives analysis for wet weather flow management in conveyance utility
systems, including evaluation of wet weather flow control technologies.

+ Current Assignments: City of Portland Taggart Outfall Pipe Rehabilitation, Clackamas WES
Collection System Planning

79

12



Key Team Member Information | Qualifications and Specific Knowledge
Brett Reistad, PE, Solids Technologist

AVAILABILITY: 50% « Responsibilities; Lead analysis of solids unit process aliematives

TIME COMMITMENT: 40% |+ Process mechanical design expert for municipal biosolids thickening/dewatering,

LENGTH AT dl"_.fll'lg, and storage.

JACOBS: 19 years + Broad project experience in solids processing, including anaerobic digestion, thermal drying,

and lime stabilization.
+ Experienced in technology evaluation, as well as final design of selected technology.
+ Current Assignments; Tri-City WRRF Solids Handling Improvements services during
construction, Portiand BES Columbia Blvd. Solids Handling Facilivy design

OFFICE: Corvallis, OR

Bill Leaf, PE, Process Modeling
AVAILABILITY: 75% Responsibilities: Lead the process simulation updates and evaluation of liquids stream impacts
TIME COMMITMENT: 1024 based an solids alternatives
LENGTH AT * Has worked with MchMinnyille WRF staff on several recent projects and evaluations, providing
JACOBS: 22 years detailed process knowledge.
_ OFFICE: Boise. ID + Developed whole-plant pracess simulztion of the WRF, including liguid and solids streams.
y g » Knowledge of the interaction of liquids and solids treatmeant unit processes at the WRFE,
« Current Assignments: Portland BES Colurnbia Blvd. STEP Project, Multiple QA/QC roles on
| projects throughout the Northwest

Dave Oerke, PE, BCEE, ATAD Technologist

AVAILABILITY: 30% i * Responsibilities: ATAD process specialist

TIME COMMITMENT: 20% | * ATAD process specialist with 15+ ATAD evaluation, design, value engineering projects, with
LENGTH AT | strong experience In existing McMinnville WRF ATAD processes

JACOBS: 17 years + First-hand experience with the evaluation and design of ATAD facilities.

+ Evaluates options to enhanced existing ATAD facilities, improve existing facilities with second-
generation ATAD equiprment, overall project GC

+ Current Assignments: Portland BES Columbia Blvd, Selids Handling Facility design, SFCSD
ATAD canstruction, Parker ATAD construction, Farmington New Mexico Evaluation of ATAD
Facilities, Sunnyvale California ROT thickening and screw press dewatering facilities

OFFICE: Denver, CO

Luke Scoggins, PE, SE, Structural Lead

AVAILABILITY: 25% [+ Responsibilities: Structural Lead for design

TIME COMMITMENT: 209 | * Extensive structural engineering background for water-holding structures in high seismic
LENGTH AT regions, including conventional reinforced and prestressed tanks/basins, welded stegl tanks,
JACOBS: 12 years * Has worked on many regional project teams, providing an awareness and understanding of
OFFICE: Corvallis OR spetific structural engineering challenges related to the City and WRF design,

|+ Current Assignments: San Jose Headworks, Lyons-Mehama Reservoir, Salmon Creek 58,

| EWEB Fish Passage
Bryan Youker, PE, Headworks Technologist
AVAILABILITY: 40% + Responsibilities: Headworks Evaluation of Alternatives Lead
TIME COMMITMENT: 20% | * Facility Lead Design engineer and QA/QC engineer with 31 vears of experience, including more
LENGTH AT | than 20 headworlks facilities; 3 of which were fallowed by oxidation ditches
JACOBS: 31 years |+ Solid understanding of 1984 McMinnville WRF design, the liquid flow stream, senior engineer

input ta the 2017 WRF expansion project,
+ Current Assignments: King County DNR: South Plant Bar Screan Replacement, West Point Grit
| Classifier Replacement, West Point Surface Aeration Replacement, San Jose-Santa Clara RWF
| Headworks Project

DFFICE: Corvallis, OR

13



Our technical resource staff are ready to add value to your project

Key Team Member | Qualifications and Specific Knowledge

Information _

Sam Chandler, PE, Civil

AVAILABILITY: 35% |+ 13years experience leading site civil and vard piping upgrades at WWTP sites, as well as previous experience
TIME COMMITMENT: 359 | managing projects for a public works department

OFFICE: Corvallis, OR '+ Current Assignments: 5an Jose Headworks 3, Tracy WWTP Phase 2B Expansion, WRCRWA Qdar Mitigation,

| UOSA Residuals Renovations and Improvements ta Building 0y2 50C
Todd Cotten, PE, Geotechnical

AVAILABILITY: 35% s M years’ experience in design and construction management, resident engineering, and geatechnical
TIME COMMITMENT: 252 engineering far WWTPs, including design of foundations and seismic mitigation systems. Extensive
OFFICE: Poriland. OR experience with local gentechinical conditions, seismic standards, and proven mitigation. Understands unique
: | challenges associated with potential liquafiable soils present at the WRF
'+ Current Assignments: Willamette Water Supply Program PLM 5.0 Pipeline Project, Columbia Blvd.
Wastewater Treatment Plant STER, Clark Regional Wastewater Salmon Creek Dutfall Project

Scott Cowden, PE, Odor Control

AVAILABILITY: 25% |+ Recognized odar control expert with more than 100 ador control projects completed, including master plans
TIME COMMITMENT: 25% and designs, Author of 50 papers on ador control and is ca-author of the Odar Emissions and Cantrol for
OFFICE: Corvallis, OR Collection Systems and Water Resource Recovery Facilities, MOP 25, 2nd Edition.

|+ Current Assignments: WRCRWA, San Jose Headworks, Doha, Qatar IDRIS

Nate Ebbs, PE, Mechanical

AVAILABILITY: 25% + Process mechanical regional technology lead for the US,/Canada West Region with 20 years of experience
TIME COMMITMENT: 25% on a wide range of mechanical systems design and on-site construction. Extensive knowledge of the

OFFICE: Corvallis, OR | WRF and saff s o .
+ Current Assignments: San Jose Cogen DB Startup, Tracy Phase 28 Solids Facilities, Tri-City WRRF Solids

Handling Improvements

|

Scott Grieco, PhD, PE, PFAS, Emerging Contaminants, and Requlatory Drivers

AVAILABILITY: 400% + 28+ years of experience in the svaluation, design, and aptimization of wastewater and other treatment
TIME COMMITMENT: 15% systems, including expertise in PFAS remeadiation and design and implementation of thermal desorption,
DFFICE: Syracuse, NY pyralysis, and incineration systems.

« Current Assignments: Crange County Water District PFAS Treatmant Pilar, City of Woodbury PFAS Master
Planning and Treatment Design, Ann Arundel County PRAS Assessment and Risk Mitigation, American Watar
PEAS Surface Water Treatment, LS. Navy Advanced Treatment of PEAS

Ryan Harbert, PE, LEED AP, Electrical

AVAILABILITY: 20% + 18+ yvears of wastewater electrical design experience, including work performed previously at the WRF.
TIME COMMITMENT: 20% Familiarity with the electrical systems and plant staff will enhance the efficient delivery of electrical design
OFFICE: Corvallis, OR to this project.

+ Current Assignments: Columbia Blvd. Secondary Expansion, San Diego SOC, San Luis Obispa SDC
Ban Herman, PE, SE, Design Manager

AVAILABILITY: 50% + Structural engineering background offers perspective on construction techniques and approaches for
TIME COMMITMENT: 50% structurally-challenging projects. Experienced, effective design manager focused on keeping the team on
OFFICE: Corvallis. OR track, allowing the project manager to focus on the client's needs

* Current Assignments: Tri-City WRRF Solids Handling Improvements, Salmon Creek Treatment Plant Phase 5B
Improvements, Tracy WWTP Phase 2B Expansion

Paul Hicks, Land Use/Permitting

AVAILABILITY: 15% + Expert in Oregon’s statewide planning process and has obtained land use approvals in over 20 local Oregon
TIME COMMITMENT: 15% jurisdictions, Authars a wide range of documents fer land use entitlement and permitting in lecal eity and
OFFICE: Portland. OR county jurisdictions for a variety of utility and infrastructure projects.

« Current Assignments: St Johns Landfill, Columbia Slough/8lind Slough Remedial Action, Klendike || Wind
Project Repower CUP Amendment, Madras Solar Enargy Facility Application for Site Certificate




Key Team Member
Information

Tom Jones, Cost Estimator

Qualifications and Specific Knowledge

AVAILABILITY: 25%
TIME COMMITMENT: 10%
OFFICE: Corvallls, OR

Geoff Kirsten, RA, NCARB, LE
AVAILABILITY: 25%

TIME COMMITMENT: 25%
OFFICE: Corvallis, OR

25+ years’ experience in overall constructian project management, estimating, coniract administration,
scheduling, material and equipment procurement. Specializes in structural, civil, architectural, and process
mechanical cost estimating and developing bid strategies. Has led cost estimating far mare than 41,4 billien
in infrastructure projects, of which nearly $1 billion 15 related to water and wastewater facilities.

+ Current Assignments: Calumbia Blvd, WWTP, Salmon Creek WWTP, Lyons-Mchama Reservoir, Coos Bay
WWTP, Dallas WWTP

ED AP, Architecture
» Senior architect with 23+ years of experience on wastewater projects and an in-depth understanding of how
to deliver quality projects for industrial clients. Experience in both process and non-process spaces.

» Current Assignments: 3 Kings Water Treatment Plant, Sunnyvale Secondary and Treatment Project, Salman
Creek Treatment Plant Phase 5B Improvements, Tracy WWTP Phase 28 Expansion, Coos Bay WWTP Uparade

Craig Massie, PE, Quality Con
AVAILABILITY: 15%

TIME COMMITMENT: 5%
OFFICE: Corvallis, OR

Jerry Nordal, PE, 1&C

trol Manager

+ 34+ years' experience in design and QC for complex, multi-disciplinary wastewater treatment projects.
Mechanical engineer by training, operates at all levels on the project, engages in detailed issue
resclution when required.

+ Current Assignments: Dallas Recycled Water Project, Dallas, OR; WASSTRIP Improvements, Clean Watar
Services, Hillsboro; Coos Bay WWTP 1 Design, Coos Bay

AVAILABILITY: S0%
TIME COMMITMENT: 25%
OFFICE: Corvallis, OR

Craig Rawie, PE, IS&C Technica
AVAILABILITY: 50%

TIME COMMITMENT: 10%
OFFICE: Silverton, OR

36 years' experience in the design and specification of 1%C and electrical power distribution systems for
municipal facilities and has led I&C for numerous water and wastewater treatment plants and pump stations.
Expertise in SCADA, PLC, and HMI development throughout Oregon and the western WS,

» Current Assignments: Leonard WTF, TRWD Cedar Creek P§

| Consultant (RaTec Services)

+ Long history with plant operatars as a go-1o resource for |&C-related issues, ensuring seamless controls for
the WRFE. Brings a solid working relationship with the WRF staff, with whom he has partnered on numerous
recent cantrols systems upgrades. Working history at the WRF gives him a unigue understanding of all the
plant's systems,

+ Current Assignments: City of Redmond SCADA projects, City of McMinnwille UV/EcoWash, City of McMinnwville
SCADA support, miscellaneous non-municipal client projects

Steve Reynolds, Construction Manager

AVAILABILITY: 100%
TIME COMMITMENT: 80%
OFFICE: Portiand, OR

* Nearly 30 years' construction management experience around the world, including numerous canstructed
water and wastewater projects in Oregon, Was on site for the anginal WRF construction in the 1990s, aswell
as the most recent projects, bringing an exceptional understanding of the WRFE.

+ Current Assignments: Nore

Ernie Strahm, Senior Operations Consultant

AVAILABILITY: 50%
TIME COMMITMENT: 10%
OFFICE: Carlton, OR

+ 35 years' wastewater operations experience, including 32 years at the McMinnville WRFE. Invalved in startup
and aperations of the WRF, optimizing the existing solids treatmert process, and the 2007-2009 facility
planning activities, providing unique eperations perspective adding value in determining the right solutions
for the WRF. Will serve as a Senior Operations Consultant to assist in reviewing process alternatives,
familiarity with WRF operations will allow him to interact seamlessly between the Jacobs tearmn and the
current WRF staff.

« Current Assignments: None

Team's Experience with the City of McMinnville

City staff will recognize most of our team members from past projects at the WRF as shown in Exhibit 7 Mo other team can match our history
with, and knowledge of, the WRF. Our long-standing relationships with your staff, familiarity with the WRF, and internal team history on numerous
projects means we will deliver your project efficiently, maximizing value for the City

82



4. Project Management

We will move this project forward, delivering the solutions you need, on schedule and on budget. While avoiding surprises is our goal, successful
project management is defined by the way we work together through challenges.

Management to Ensure Schedule and Budget

Put simiply, project management consists of planning and executing. Both require experience and
the ability to communicate clearly with the City and team members. Jacobs has a disciplined
project management system that we use on all projects. This system establishes our standards,

-allowing them to easily procedures, and protocols and is focused on building predictability and certainty into our
an d iwnicp E] aly. project delivery, with the goal of supporting the success of our project teams with consistent
: g use of our best practices, Our project execution plan includes the scope of work, team member
:lq;n{-d Wi Lh the City's fiscal cale rldal respansibilities, budget broken down by individuals' milestones, and schedule. This document will

be issued before work begins and serve as a road map for the Design Phase of the praject

Our project management techniques work

Our Project Manager Josh Koch manages his projects by continually monitoring and communicating schedule status to his clients. Our team will
-meet milestones by planning the work realistically, engaging the City for key input and decisions at the right time, managing our QA program to
avoid re-work, and delivering on our cammitments, When project changes occur, we will identify the potential change, provide alternatives and
recommendations for City consideration, gan City endorsement of the required approach, and implement that change — all with an eye an the
project schedule and total project cost. Josh will track budget weekly through Jacobs' system and praduce updates for the City either manthly or
more frequently if preferred On the recent Tertiary Treatment and Disinfection project, we worked within a tight budget despite early concerns
that the contractor's performance reguired mare atrention than planned. Josh discussed budget with Larry frequently, before a problem
occurred, so they could plan accordingly. Continuous communication resulted in finishing the project under budget.

Similar ta other planning and design projects Josh has managed, he will schedule monthly
meetings with Larry to provide status updates an all ongoing tasks. Josh will issue meeting
notes from these calls documenting action items, Where work involves communication with
third parties or ather City staff, Josh or the assigned task lead will summarize communication

in an email of memaorandum and subimit it ta the City for project dorumentation. We will clearly
identify project communication protocols at the kickoff meeting and follow these protocols to
encure effective commurnication

Dedicated Quality Manager, Craig Massie

and attention to quality i L
you speak with his clients. He has
(C Manager for numerous

j rinfrastructure d
Our Quality Management Plan will ensure success in the A 'h. jest an has a
Delivering quality work through all phases of a project is the cornerstone of our success, We will
implement our standard practices for OA/OC, complating required internal reviews af all work
products prior to client delivery. Josh will work with aur QA/QC Lead, Craig Massie, ta devalop
aDuality Management Plan that dictates QA/OC practices for the project and the team's roles
and responsibilities. Craig has over 34 years' experience in wastewater planning and has worked
closely with many of our task leads for mare than 15 years. Craig's familiarity with McMinnville
makes him a perfect fit for this role (o our team throughout ”'E *'r"""" 3

Subconsultant Coordination

Because we can deliver this project almost entirely in-house, minimal effort will be spent managing subcontractors and contracts. Our only
subcontractor, Craig Rawie of RaTec Solutions, is a former Jacobs employee who has worked successfully with Josh on the recent Tertiary
Treatment and Disinfection Project. Craig and Josh communicate weekly ta ensure Craig is a fully integrated part of the team.

Facilitating Stakeholder Input and Approval

The Jacobs team has a proven track record of gaining timely appraval of your project with state requlators (DEQ) and gaining Land use and
building permit approvals.

Our teamn members are known to DEQ reviewers, and we have worked hard and earned their respect over the years, DEQ plan reviewers have
come to expect the best from Jacabs, and they know our decuments will be clear and easy to follow. We will keep DEQ apprised of the project
schedule throughout design so thal we appear on their review docket and submit interim deliverables to facilitate their final review and approval

Regulatory Input and Permitting

Depending on the path forward, new WRF facilities may be located on land adjacent to the WRF and owned by the City but outside the ity limits
and zoned by Yamhill County for Exclusive Farm Use (EFU). Our land use and permitting expert, Paul Hicks, has extensive experience obtaining
land use approvals for EFU-zoned projects. He has reviewed the Yamhill County Zoning Ordinance and determined the project is consistent with
the County's cefiniion of "utility facilities necessary for public service” and may be permitted in the EFU zone administratively by the Planning
Director (no public hearing required), subject Lo the provisions of Yamhill County Zoning Ordinance (YCZQO) Section 402.04(F) and ORS8815.275

16



{utility facilities necessary for public service), development standards in the EFU \
zone (YCZQ Section 402,09}, and the County site design review process (YCZO0 Paul Hicks will obtainthe necessary regulatory
Section 1101), itk
Applicable County development standards are abjective and can be met (30'
setback, 45 maximum height, adequate parking, etc.) by this project. The site design
review process is straightforward and reasonable. However, because the areais
high-value farmland, there is always the possibility of opposition fram farm land
preservation groups or neighbors, Therefore, it is critical to work closely with County
staff to prepare a legally-defensible applicatian. If the recommended project may
impact neighbors, we should also meet in advance with immediate neighbors to
gain endorsement.

respectively. In both counti

met the de icilities necessary
for public service” and we nitted using the
process we will use for the proposed WRF project,

Approach to Addressing Errors and/or Omissions

Jacobs past project delivery for the City is the best measure of our quality and commitment to our work. Municipal project change order rates
often exceed 5% with successful projects often targeting a range from 3 1o 5%. On the WRF Expansion, the total change order rate was less than
1.6% and less than 0.3% was due to items that could be considered errors ar omissions. On the recent Tertiary Treatment and UV Project, despite
some challenging change situations with the contractor, we still finished with under a 2% change order rate, with a minimal amount attributable
toerrors and omissions. Mo client can pay enough to have a perfect design, and no project is immune to some degree of errors and emissions,
but how they are managed significantly influences the impact on cost, schedule, and quality. Our presence during construction, especially when
we have the opportunity for full-time presence, ensures we werk constructively with the contractor to avoid changes and mitigate the impact of
those that cannot be avoided.

Effective Contract Administration and Construction Inspection

We recognize that completing the Design Phase is just the start of a successful project. We will engage Steve Reynolds, our Construction
Manager, during the Design Phase for constructability reviews and continuity with the design team, Once construction begins, our team is
committed to seeing their designs through construction and startup. Steve's close coordination with the design team consistently ensures
successful project delivery. He has unique experience at the WRF through his invelvement with the ariginal WRF construction in the 1990s and
the last two major projects, As demonstrated on the last two projects, Josh and Steve will maintain a regular presence on site. Depending on the
size and scope of the project, they will develop a staffing plan accordingly.

Foster Successful Relationships

Experienced owners, project managers, construction managers, and contractors understand that challenging situations are inevitable, and while
minimizing these situations should be a goal, the way the team works together to overcome challenges is the true test of a successful team.
Problems should be solved at the lowest level possible On larger projects, we have successfully implemented a Partnering Program, separate
from reqular weekly meetings. This is a monthly meeting to ensure the management team agrees the project is maving in the right direction and
provides an opportunity to make any course corrections.

5. Project Schedule
Planned Approach to Managing the Schedule

Jacobs' Five-Phase Design Process (Exhibit 4) provides well-defined, measurable milestones as the design pragresses, This approach assures we
have a structure under which to work collaboratively to make decisions in the right arder and identify and address potential issues early. As part
af the Project Definition Phase, we will work with the City to determine how to best implement the recommended project. The implementation
schedule is largely driven by three factors.

+ Construction Sequencing Constraints: A construction phase that is coordinated with dry weather and low flows will enable relatively
straightforward construction and result in the lowest construction cost for the City. A critical milestane, therefore, is delivery of a complete
design such that we can support a bid advertisement date that accommodates these goals.

« Equipment Procurement: Depending on the project scope recommended in the Project Definition Phase, major equipment procurement
may be required, While typically equipment procurement is part of the construction contract, owner-purchase or pre-selection of equipment
can be leveraged to create a mare aggressive project schedule. These tools are often utilized where another sequencing milestone becames
a praject driver This was the case for the recent WRF Tertiary and Disinfection Project where UV equipment was pre-selected and pre-
negotiated to ensure the equipment arrived on site for installation during dry weather,

+ Design Duration: Once the project scope, anticipated schedule; and equipment strategy are defined, the Design Phase duration can be
tailored accordingly to meet the project demands. The depth and breadth of our Corvallis Design Center resources is such that we

frequently deliver large designs on accelerated schedules to meet project demands. .

17



Once the above factors are established, Jacobs will work with the City to develop a project approach that results in a successful project, similar 1o
the recent the WRF Expansion Project and WRF Tertiary Treatment and Disinfection Project Exhibit 10 summarizes the critical project elements
that will be incorporated during schedule development for the current project

Timeline to Deliver

The recommendations made in the Project Definition Phase will control the size, scope, and duration of the design and construction project,
Depending on the project recommended, the sequencing constraints identified previously may result in project milestones that drive design
or construction schedule. Exhibit 10 represents an aggressive design schedule that results in bid advertisement in Spring 2021, The Project
Cefinition Report will include an updated baseline schedule based on the actual project recommended.

Anticipated Design Workshops, Reviews, and Deliverables

Anticipated design workshops, QC, review periods, and deliverables are shown on the schedule in Exhibit 10,

Exhibit 10. Project Schedule 1070

Council Meeting &

Wotice to Proceed E

15% Project Definition Phase I i T T
Kickoff £
Survey——————TJTASK COMPLETE ) S5 |

QC and cost estimating

Georech Fuploration- (@) TASK COMPLETE

Initiat- Model Development—) TASK COMPLETE
Develop Alternatives

Solids Process Workshop -
Submit Project Definition Report =2 =]
City Review Period and Workshop [ |

30% Schematic Design Phase (Typ. Phase)
Kickoff E
Design

Progress Meeting
Submit Draft

City Review Period and Workshop [}
incorporate City Comments

&
Submit Final Report ?
60% Design Development Submit to DEQ and to ~ | i -]
KickofF Yamhill County for Land
i Use Permitting Review ®
Design ]
Progress Meeting &
Submit Drawings and Specifications il
L 2
|
L 4

City Review Period and Workshop
90-100% Contract and Bid Documents
Kickoff -
Design ==
Progress Meeting S

Submit Drawings and Specifications - &

City Review Periad and Workshop 9]
Fix Upand Stamp %]

Bid Advertisement *

85

18



Involvement of City Personnel

Communication with City staff is critical throughout the project, We realize that staff have primary job responsibilities outside the praject, and we
respect their time and limited availability. Adding Ernie Strahm to our team ensures we incorporate a historical operator's perspective into our
design before presenting ideas to the City, which will minimize the time required of City staff.

The schedule includes City invalvement as follows:

« Kick OFf Meetings {1 day per phase), The Jacobs team will meet with City staff to charter the phase and collaboratively set goals. Because
our team and your staff have been warking tegether for years, we begin work immediately,

* Progress Meetings (1 day per phase). We will meet with the City at key points during each Design Phase to review progress and gain staff
input. We will submit en agenda prior w each meeting for your review and comment to ensure the meetings are productive. Following the
mieeting, we will submit a meating summary documenting the discussion, Generally, these meetings will include Josh, Ben, and the discipline
leads. Because our design leads are a shorl drive away, including the relevant leads in meetings is an easy decision. We anticipate that City
attendess will include Larry, Lelard, Mike, Tim, and other key WRF stalf,

* Review Workshops (1 day per phase). We will meet with City staff at key milestones to cellect comments on major deliverables. We have
allowed 2 weeks for City review of milestone deliverables. We will deliver paper and electronic copies of deliverables 2 weeks minimum prior
Cost estimates will be prepared for presentation at each workshop. We will prepare and submit an agenda for your review and a meeting
summary with your comments and our responses to ensure each are addressed. Key decisions will be tracked on a decision log

+ Informal Meetings (as needed, but no more than 2 hours per week). Our scope of work will include an allowance for informal meetings as
needed The meetings may be focused on an issue or discipline and include specific desian team members and City stafl, as apprapnate. We
will prepare and submit an agenda and meeting summaries We are nearby and availlable at your converience.

* Project Manager Review Meetings (1 hour per month). losh will meet with Larry manthly, sither in person or by phone, to review the hucget
and schedule. To facilitate Larry's rale in the City hudget process, Josh will provide a forecasted expenditure summary through June af
gach fiscal year.

6. Cost Estimating

Cost estimating accuracy is critical to this project’s credibility and success. We understand the City hasa idabudlel
Capital Improvement Plan budget and those funds are limited. 32
Jacobs stands behind the estimates we prepare for cur clients throughout the lifecycle of a project. Our
professional cost estimators bring resources to support the design team with comprehensive and accurate
cost estimates.

Jacobs brings direct experience building WWTPs for fixed construction prices through our role as a design-build contractor, We are acutely aware
of the impacts of design changes once a planning-level budget has been adopted, This experience with risks results in cost estimates that are
well-reviewed and fully reflect the actual construction cost at the time the estimate is developed, as shown in Exhibit 11,

Our final cost

Approach to Developing Cost Estimates

To build cost estimates, unit prices are generated using data from similar, regional, and recent projects, actual material and equipment
quotations, current local labor and equipment cost data; and, in some cases, published construction cost estimating guides such as Means
Construction Cost Deta and Richardson Process Plant Construction Estimating Standards. Jacobs' cost estimating follows the standards
established by the Assaciation for the Advancement of Cost Engineering International (AACEL). However, even though we use the [atest data
available to develop estimates, some contractor variables are outside our control, therefore we include an accuracy range developed by AACE to
account for these variables. Our estimates are developed to be well within accuracy ranges,

We bring an effective understanding of risk and will suggest appropriate use of allowances and urit price bid items. We used this strategy
successfully on the recent ATAD recoating project, where unit cost for repair work was included in the bid form,

Mt each Design Phase, Tom Jones will work with Josh and the design team to develop a cost estimate for review. The team will confirm that Tom
has acrurately accounted for major project companents, including equipment pricing and quantities; constructability and sequencing issues, such
as temporary pumping and bulkheads; pipe sizes and lengths; and major electrical and instrumentation components, Tom and Josh have utilized
this review approach on multiple projects, resulting in accurate estimates our clients depend on, Exhibit 11 presents two WRF projects and one
Clean Water Services praject where Tom and Josh worked closely producing excellent results.

We use the most effective tools for cost control

Jacobs uses 3D design as our standard approach on new facilities, because we can produce documents more cost effectively. These powerful
toals reduce design cests and allow for better communication of improvements to operations staff and elected officials. Utilizing the model
during construction enhances contractor understanding.

Process alternatives can be quickly evaluated using our whole-plant madeling and cost estimating tools Our team has already developed

a complete process model For the McMinnville WRF. This madel allows our design ream ta quickly and accurately assess the impar:'r}"3 gn the

19



whole treatment process from the smallest process modifications, and provides planning-level construction cost estimates, including lifetime
operational cests with current and projected energy costs, chemical costs, and other cost inputs,

As demaonstrated on the last two WRF projects, we closely review construction sequencing throughout the Design Phase and incorporate
this understanding into our cost estimates such that the City can rely on our accuracy. Construction sequencing is often overlocked but plays
a critical role in anticipating how a contractor will schedule work and any temporary provisions required to accomplish the work, On the last two
WRF projects, the construction contractors relied heawly on the construction sequence Jacobs developed, and while not required, adopted maost
of the same steps we identified during the Design Phase,

Recent Construction Cost Estimate Accuracy and Engineering
Cost Examples

Tom Janes and Josh Koch work jointly to ensure that the cost estimates thraughout the design process assure you your praject is on track. In the
recent WRF Tertiary Traatment and Disinfection Project and WRF Expansion Project, our cast estimates remainecd consistent from concaptual
design through final design. Our final cost estimates were within 1.6% and 3.5%, respectively, of the average of all bids on your recent prajects.
Your projects were no exception, as shown in Exhibit 19

Qur engineering costs rarely change, including for our three reference projects. Cur commitment to delivering a successful project is evidenced
by more than our commitment to maintaining design cost and providing accurate estimates, Typical industry standard errors and omissions rates
have been reparted as 310 7%, Our overall change arder rates are substantially less and changes due te errors and omissions are a fraction of
our competition.

Exhibit 11. Cost Estimate Bid Comparison ond Engineering Cost Examples Table

Engineering Cost Jacobs Estimate Actual Constructian Cost

Construction Cost Difference from Total Change

Team Member Change Orders Estimate Average Hid Average Bid Initial Bid Drders'

Josh Kach, PM L864,704 10 $2682357 | 42641080 1.6% 22417775 £32.250
Tom Jones, Estimator {based an (based on (based on
single contract) | single contract) awarded bid of

. each contract)
Reference Contact Infarmation: City of McMinnville, Larry Sherwoed, Engineering Services Manager, 503.434.7312
MEMINNVILLE WRF EXPANSION (2016)
Josh Koch, PM $1,395,913 40 $12,028814 711,625 449 3.5% $10,415989 $168 763
Tom Jones, Estimator
Reference Contact Information: City of McMinnville, Leland Kaester, Wastewater Services Manager, 503 434 7313
CLEAN WATER SERVICES, DURHAM 582.{2015)

Josh Kaoch, PM 51,144,323 0 $5,243 846 $5,2594,308 -1.0% $4.956,960 5231164
Tom Jones, Estimator

Reference Contact Infarmation: Clean Water Services, Dan Garbely, Principal Engineer, 5039279447

* All values shown include change order costs for all reasons, including errors, omissions, cwner-requested changes, and changed site
conditions, The portion attributable to errors and omissions in all cases is less than 30% of the cost of change orders.

87



Resumes

Key Personnel

Josh Koch, PE, Project Manager

Mark Johnson, PE, Principal-in-Charge
Brett Reistad, PE, Solids Technolegist

Bill Leaf, PE, Process Modeling

Dave Oerke, PE, BCEE, ATAD Technologist
Luke Scogagins, PE, SE, Structural Lead
Bryan Youker, PE, Headworks Technologist

Technical Resource Staff

Sam Chandler, PE, Civil

Todd Cotten, PE, Geotechnical

Scott Cowden, PE, Odor Contral

Mate Ebbs, PE, Mechanical

Scott Grieco, PhD, PE, PFAS, Emerging Contaminants, and Regulatory Orivers
Ryan Harbert, PE, LEED AP, Electrical

Ben Herman, PE, SE, Design Manager

Paul Hicks, Land Use/Permitting

Tom Jones, Cost Estimatar

Geoflf Kirsten, RA, NCARB, LEED AP, Architecture

Craig Massie, PE, Quality Control Manager

Jerry Nordal, PE, 1I&C

Craig Rawie, PE, Ralec Solutions, I1RC Technical Consultant
Steve Reynolds, Construction Manager

Ernie Strahm, Senior Operations Consultant

88



Resume JaCObS

Joshua Koch, PE EDUCATION
PROJECT MANAGER MS, CiVlland En‘:’iron'mﬂntal
Engineering, University of
Distinguishing Qualifications Wisconsin-Madison
BS, Civil and Environmental
* Qver 13 years of experience delivering water and wastewater treatment Engineering, University of
projects, from preliminary design through construction and startup. Wisconsin-Madison
* Experienced with a variety of project roles including detailed designer, PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATIONS
design manager, quality manager, construction manager, and project _
manager on projects including both conventional and alternative delivery | Professional Engineer: Oregon,
rathods, Washington, Hawaii

* Extensive experience in the field, including serving as client representative, resident engineer, and on-site
inspector for a range of wastewater treatment facilities.

* Expertise developing construction sequences and solving field issues relating to multiple engineering and
construction disciplines.

Representative Projects

Project Manager, McMinnville WRF Tertiary Treatment and Disinfection Project, City of McMinnville, OR.
Managed the engineering services for retrofit of the City's existing UV system and tertiary filters from planning
thraugh construction on this $1.9M project that required closely reviewing the WRF Master Plan assumptions,
adjusting where necessary, and implementing solutions that provide exceptional value for the City. Project
required development of detailed construction sequencing that incorporated complicated constraints based on
maintaining existing WRF operations.

Design Manager, Residuals Renovations and Improvements to Building D/2, Upper Occoquan Service
Authority, Centreville, VA. Managed the design team on complicated replacement of existing digester pipe
gallery, addition of centrifuges, and extensive electrical upgrades. CM/CG delivery required coordination with
contractor during design on this $18.3M project.

Project Manager, Assistant Design Manager, and Process Lead, McMinnville WRF Expansion Project, City of
McMinnville, OR. Led facility design of the new Orbal oxidation ditch, secondary clarifier, return sludge pump
station, and hydraulic modifications to multiple existing facilities on $10.4M water reclamation facility expansion,
Negotiated sole-source equipment package with vendor for $530,000 of aeration equipment. Coordinated
Engineer's construction cost estimate within 1% of average of all contractor bids. Managed day-to-day design
activities, resulting in on-time, on-budget design project. Managed design team during construction.

Construction Manager, McMinnville WRF Oxidation Ditch Improvements, City of McMinnville, OR. Worked with
the contractor and the owner to successfully complete improvements project. Small construction project
included many of the same obstacles as larger projects, including sequencing constraints, changed site
conditions, safety concerns, and construction scope changes. Duties included site safety coordinator, daily
inspection, management, pay request review, change order review, startup sequencing, and owner coordination.

Quality Manager, Tri-City WRRF Solids Handling Improvements Project P632162, Clackamas County Water
Environment Services, OR. Managed the team of senior QC review engineers to ensure continuous QC and
coordination with engineering leads, documentation of review comments and responses, and facilitation of high-
level coordination between disciplines.

Resident Engineer, Scott Water Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion, McMinnville Water & Light,
McMinnville, OR. Worked as resident observer with construction management, resident engineering, inspection,
and Site Safety Coordinator tasks on a challenging, remote $30M CM/GC drinking water treatment plant upgrade
and expansion. Construction management duties included tracking contractor's schedule, reviewing pay requests
and contingency adjustments, presenting construction progress to client, managing special inspection
subcontractor, and organizing Jacobs' on-site staffing. Project was delivered on schedule and on budget, Minimal
contingency usage exceeded expectations and was well below industry average. Resident engineering duties



Resume JaCObS

included reviewing and approving Requests for Information (RFI) and submittal responses, coordinating
contractor, design engineers, and startup activities. Inspection duties included soil and rock compaction,
concrete, masonry, grout, rebar and anchor, process pipe and hydraulic structure leak testing, and equipment
performance testing. Site safety coordinator duti